# CAMDEN Reacue Plan

HOME Investment Partnerships - Americ (HOME-ARP)





lan





# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

CONSULTATION	4
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION	7
NEEDS ASSESSMENT AND GAPS ANALYSIS	7
	<u> </u>
SIZE AND DEMOGRAPHIC COMPOSITION OF QUALIFYING POPULATIONS	8
HOMELESS INDIVIDUALS, AS DEFINED IN 24 CFR 91.5	8
AT RISK OF HOMELESSNESS, AS DEFINED IN 24 DFR 91.5	11
FLEEING, OR ATTEMPTING TO FLEE, DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, DATING VIOLENCE, SEXUAL ASSAULT, STALKING, OR HUMAN	
TRAFFICKING, AS DEFINED BY HUD IN THE HOME-ARP NOTICE	14
OTHER POPULATIONS REQUIRING SERVICES OR HOUSING ASSISTANCE TO PREVENT HOMELESSNESS AND OTHER	
POPULATIONS AT GREATEST RISK OF HOUSING INSTABILITY, AS DEFINED BY HUD IN THE HOME-ARP NOTICE	14
CURRENT RESOURCES AVAILABLE TO ASSIST QUALIFYING POPULATIONS	16
UNMET HOUSING AND SERVICE NEEDS OF QUALIFYING POPULATIONS	18
HOMELESS INDIVIDUALS, AS DEFINED IN 24 CFR 91.5	18
AT RISK OF HOMELESSNESS, AS DEFINED IN 24 DFR 91.5	18
FLEEING, OR ATTEMPTING TO FLEE, DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, DATING VIOLENCE, SEXUAL ASSAULT, STALKING, OR HUMAN	
TRAFFICKING, AS DEFINED BY HUD IN THE HOME-ARP NOTICE	19
OTHER POPULATIONS REQUIRING SERVICES OR HOUSING ASSISTANCE TO PREVENT HOMELESSNESS AND OTHER	
POPULATIONS AT GREATEST RISK OF HOUSING INSTABILITY, AS DEFINED BY HUD IN THE HOME-ARP NOTICE	19
GAPS WITHIN CURRENT SHELTER AND HOUSING INVENTORY AND SERVICE DELIVERY SYSTEMS	19
ADDITIONAL CHARACTERISTICS ASSOCIATED WITH INSTABILITY AND INCREASED RISK OF HOMELESSNESS	20
PRIORITY NEEDS FOR QUALIFYING POPULATIONS	20
HOMELESS INDIVIDUALS, AS DEFINED IN 24 CFR 91.5	20
AT RISK OF HOMELESSNESS, AS DEFINED IN 24 DFR 91.5	20
FLEEING, OR ATTEMPTING TO FLEE, DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, DATING VIOLENCE, SEXUAL ASSAULT, STALKING, OR HUMAN	
TRAFFICKING, AS DEFINED BY HUD IN THE HOME-ARP NOTICE	21
OTHER POPULATIONS REQUIRING SERVICES OR HOUSING ASSISTANCE TO PREVENT HOMELESSNESS AND OTHER	
POPULATIONS AT GREATEST RISK OF HOUSING INSTABILITY, AS DEFINED BY HUD IN THE HOME-ARP NOTICE	21
DETERMINATION OF LEVEL OF NEED AND GAPS IN SHELTER AND HOUSING INVENTORY AND SERVICE DELIVERY SYSTEMS	21

HME-ARP ACTIVITIES	21
USE OF HOME-ARP FUNDING	22
HOME-ARP PRODUCTION HOUSING GOALS	22
APPENDIX A	27
APPENDIX B	10



### Participating Jurisdiction: Camden County, NJ Date: February 24, 2023

The American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 was signed into law on March 11, 2021, providing over 1.9 trillion dollars to address the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the nation. Of those funds, \$5 billion was earmarked for homelessness assistance and supportive services for individuals and families who are homeless, at risk of homelessness, or in other vulnerable populations. These activities include the development and support of affordable housing, Tenant-Based Rental Assistance (TBRA), the provision of supportive services, and the acquisition and development of congregate and non-congregate shelter units (NCS). Camden County received a HOME-ARP allocation of \$ 4,108,852. The County has completed the required consultation, public participation, analysis of community needs and inventory of resources in the development of this HOME-ARP Allocation Plan.

## **CONSULTATION**

#### Describe the consultation process including methods used and dates of consultation:

Camden County began the HOME-ARP planning process by first consulting with Camden County Homeless Network Planning Committee (HNPC) on December 15, 2022. In South Jersey there is a Four County Continuum of Care (CoC), which includes the Counties of Camden, Cape May, Cumberland and Gloucester. This CoC is known as the Southern New Jersey Continuum of Care (SNJCoC). The HNPC Committee represents Camden County on the Continuum of Care, with representatives regularly attending the SNJCoC meetings.

\_

\_

The Camden County HNPC includes representatives from the following agencies:

- Camden Coalition of Healthcare Providers
- NJ Department of Community Affairs
- Taylor Care
- Catholic Charities
- Camden County Domestic Violence
- Services
- Acenda
- Family Services Re-Entry
- Senior Citizens Untied Community
- Services

- Community Support Programs of NJ
- Volunteers of America Delaware Valley
- Center for Family Services
- SNJCoC Coordinated Entry
- Cathedral Kitchen
- Camden County Board of Social Services
- NJ Juvenile Justice
  - Belmont Homes

Camden County also consulted with the SNJCoC on January 2, 2023. The CoC Executive Board includes representation from the following organizations:

- ACENDA Health
- CAMcare
- Camden City
- Cape May County
- Cape May County Habitat for Humanity
- Care and Share Meals
- Catholic Charities
- Center for Family Services
- Collaborative Support Programs of NJ
- Community Planning & Advocacy Council
- Cumberland County
- Cumberland Family Shelter (Rural
- Development Corp)

- Hannah's House
- Housing Authority of Gloucester County - Monarch Housing
- Monarch Housing - Camden County Dome
  - Camden County Domestic Violence Center
- NJ Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency
- Rutgers Southern Region Child Care
- Resource & Referral Agency
- South Jersey Behavioral Health
- Veterans Administration
- Volunteers of America

In addition, the following agencies were contacted via email to give direct input into the Allocation Plan:

- Clementon Housing Authority
- Fair Share Housing Center
- Pennsauken Housing Authority
- South Jersey Legal Services
- Veterans Multi-Service

Lastly, the SNJCoC recently conducted a series of focus groups that were also helpful input into the Allocation Plan and the County recently issued a report based on input from 50 individuals with lived experience in the shelter system.

#### List the organizations consulted:

Agency/Org Consulted	Type of Agency/Org	Method of Consultation	Feedback
ACENDA Health	Integrated Healthcare	Presentation at CoC Meeting, Discussion at HNPC Meeting	The HNPC/CoC provided feedback on housing/service needs and process
CAMcare	Healthcare	Presentation at CoC Meeting	The CoC provided feedback on housing/service needs and process
Camden City	City Government	Presentation at CoC Meeting	The CoC provided feedback on housing/service needs and process
Care and Share Meals	Food Resource for seniors and disabled persons	Presentation at CoC Meeting	The CoC provided feedback on housing/service needs and process
Catholic Charities	Social Services, Rental Assistance, Fair Housing, Veterans Assistance, Re- Entry	Presentation at CoC Meeting, Discussion at HNPC Meeting	The HNPC/CoC provided feedback on housing/service needs and process
Center for Family Services	Social Services including homeless service provider, homelessness prevention, domestic violence and more.	Presentation at CoC Meeting, Discussion at HNPC Meeting	The HNPC/CoC provided feedback on housing/service nkeeds and process
Collaborative Support Programs of New Jersey	Behavioral Health	Presentation at CoC Meeting, Discussion at HNPC Meeting	The HNPC/CoC provided feedback on housing/service needs and process
Community Planning & Advocacy Council	Social Services including Senior and Homeless Services	Presentation at CoC Meeting, Discussion at HNPC Meeting	The HNPC/CoC provided feedback on housing/service needs and process
Hannah's House	Domestic Violence Shelter and Services	Presentation at CoC Meeting	The CoC provided feedback on housing/service needs and process
Monarch Housing	Housing Consultant	Presentation at CoC Meeting	The CoC provided feedback on housing/service needs and process
Camden County Domestic Violence Center (NJAC)	Domestic Violence Shelter and Services	Presentation at CoC Meeting	The CoC provided feedback on housing/service needs and process
NJ Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency	Housing Finance Agency	Presentation at CoC Meeting, Discussion at HNPC Meeting	The HNPC/CoC provided feedback on housing/service needs and process
Rutgers Southern Region Child Care Resource & Referral Agency	Early Childhood Education and Social Services	Presentation at CoC Meeting	The CoC provided feedback on housing/service needs and process
South Jersey Behavioral Health	Behavioral Health	Presentation at CoC Meeting	The CoC provided feedback on housing/service needs and process
Veterans Administration	Veterans Services, including services for disabled adults	Presentation at CoC Meeting	The CoC provided feedback on housing/service needs and process
Volunteers of America	Services include homelessness, reentry, veterans assistance, assistance for disabled adults, affordable housing services, substance misuse disorders, mental health, etc.	Presentation at CoC Meeting, Discussion at HNPC Meeting	The HNPC/CoC provided feedback on housing/service needs and process

Clementon	Housing Authority	Email outreach	No feedback provided.
Housing Authority Fair Share Housing	Fair Housing	Email outreach	No feedback provided.
Center			
Pennsauken Housing Authority	Housing Authority	Email outreach	No feedback provided.
South Jersey Legal Services	Legal Services for fair housing, elderly, disabled adults, etc.	Email outreach	No feedback provided.
Camden Coalition of Healthcare Providers	Health and Data Services	Discussion at HNPC Meeting	The HNPC provided feedback on housing/service needs and process
NJ Department of	Government Agency,	Discussion at HNPC Meeting	The HNPC provided feedback on
Community Affairs	Housing		housing/service needs and process
SNJCoC	Coordinated Entry	Discussion at HNPC Meeting	The HNPC provided feedback on
Coordinated Entry			housing/service needs and process
Camden County	Social Services, Domestic	Discussion at HNPC Meeting	The HNPC provided feedback on
Domestic Violence Services	Violence		housing/service needs and process
Family Services Re- Entry	Social Services, Re-Entry	Discussion at HNPC Meeting	The HNPC provided feedback on housing/service needs and process
Senior Citizens	Senior and Disabled Services	Discussion at HNPC Meeting	The HNPC provided feedback on
United Community Services			housing/service needs and process
Cathedral Kitchen	Food Resources, Workforce Development	Discussion at HNPC Meeting	The HNPC provided feedback on housing/service needs and process
Camden County	Government Agency, Social	Discussion at HNPC Meeting	The HNPC provided feedback on
Board of Social	Services for families,	_	housing/service needs and process
Services	domestic violence victims,		
	seniors, disabled adults, etc.		
NJ Juvenile Justice	Government Agency,	Discussion at HNPC Meeting	The HNPC provided feedback on
	Juvenile Justice		housing/service needs and process
Belmont Homes	Affordable Housing	Discussion at HNPC Meeting	The HNPC provided feedback on
	_		housing/service needs and process
	Adult Behavioral Health	Discussion at HNPC Meeting	The HNPC provided feedback on
Taylor Care			housing/service needs and process

#### Summarize feedback received and results of upfront consultation with these entities:

Much of the feedback received focused on the need for affordable housing. Those consulted shared the need for both housing units and vouchers, recognizing that vouchers are only helpful when there are affordable units available. HOME-ARP provides an opportunity to close some of the gaps in the existing system through the ability to pair wraparound services with vouchers and the ability to issue rental assistance beyond Fair Market Rent (FMR), which is important since landlords are raising rents.

Additionally, those agencies working with clients at-risk of homelessness advocated for additional rental vouchers. They discussed the importance of being able to transition households to voucher as a strategy to maintain their housing instead of needing a household to become homeless in order to be eligible for a voucher. There is still a need for emergency housing/utility assistance, as well as security/utility deposit assistance. There is a long-term need for social program to address low credit scores and criminal records, as both of these are barriers in renting housing.

Feedback from those in the shelter system included the need for increased cleanliness, increased security and more basic amenities such as showers, laundry, storage, etc. Additionally, feedback included change in hours of operation, additional staff training and social services/workforce development. Lastly, those utilizing shelters prefer a non-Congregate model to the often-traditional Congregate model.

## **PUBLIC PARTICIPATION**

Describe the public participation process, including information about and the dates of the public comment period and public hearing(s) held during the development of the plan:

- Date(s) of public notice: 2/24/23
- Public comment period: start date 2/24/2023 end date 3/10/2023
- Date(s) of public hearing: 3/8/2023

#### Describe the public participation process:

The public review process and the public hearing were noticed in the local paper, in accordance with the County's Citizen Participation Plan. The HOME-ARP Public Hearing was held in on March 8, 2023. The hearing was held as a virtual hearing. County staff were prepared to present an overview of HOME-ARP, including the County's allocation amount and the range of possibly eligible activities. There were no participants on the public hearing. The County posted the draft of the Allocation Plan on their website for public review. There were no written public comments submitted.

#### Describe efforts to broaden public participation:

Camden County, as a HOME Consortium Participating Jurisdiction (PJ), followed their adopted Citizen Participation process, except that the length of the public comment period was shortened to 15 days as allowed by HUD guidance. The public notice for the hearing was run in the local paper and posted to the County's website. The public notice included instructions on how the public can request reasonable accommodations and meaningful access to the plan in accordance with the County's citizen participation plan. Although willing to consider any comments or views of residents received in writing, or orally at a public hearing, when preparing the HOME-ARP allocation plan; none have been submitted.

# Summarize the comments and recommendations received through the public participation process either in writing or orally at a public hearing:

No comments have been submitted.

#### Summarize any comments or recommendations not accepted and state the reasons why:

No comments have been submitted.

### **NEEDS ASSESSMENT AND GAPS ANALYSIS**

This Needs Assessment and Gap Analysis evaluates the size, demographic composition, and priority needs of qualifying populations in Camden County as identified in 24 CFR 91.5, 24 CFR 5. 2003, 42 U.S.C. 12742(a), and by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).

These include the following:

- Individuals or families who are homeless
- Individuals or families who are at risk of homelessness
- Individuals or families who are fleeing or attempting to flee domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, stalking, or human trafficking
- Populations where providing supportive services or assistance would prevent a family's homelessness or would serve those with the greatest risk of housing instability
- Veterans and families that include a veteran family member that meet the criteria in one of the aforementioned.

This document identifies the existing shelter and housing inventory in Camden County as well as the service delivery system. Additionally, a gap analysis is provided to explore the need for additional housing, shelter, and/or services by using current data, including Point in Time count (PIT), Housing Inventory Count (HIC), data provided by the Continuum of Care (CoC), and consultations with service providers. Additional consideration is provided for the identification of housing characteristics associated with instability and an increased risk of homelessness. Unless otherwise specified, information presented in this report is provided by the NJ Counts Report compiled by Monarch Housing Associates and The New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency.

In this analysis it is important to consider the impact that the COVID-19 pandemic had on the nation. HUD and the CDC issued a number of safety measures for all communities conducting the 2022 PIT Count. These included but were not limited to the following:

- Decrease face-to-face interactions with clients;
- Decrease the number of volunteers who would need to work in physical proximity
- Providing PPE to all volunteers; and
- Designing a process that minimizes close contact

Additional precautions were taken in NJ in the following ways:

- Elimination or changes to Project Homeless Connect events
  - 7-day outreach and service-based count
- Reduction in use of volunteers to support the unsheltered count
- Increased connection with community-based services providers such as day-centers, soup kitchens and medical facilities to identify and connect with unsheltered persons

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, HUD gave communities the option to cancel or modify the unsheltered portion of the PIT count based on the potential risk of transmission associated with conducting an in-person survey. Thus, it is important to note that there are significant differences between the 2022 PIT count and that of 2021 as vaccines had not been widely distributed at the time, and outreach restrictions were issued on both the state and federal level. Though most of the report 2022 is utilized, some consideration is given to 2021 data when compared to 2019 data in the interest of evaluating the early impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic.

### SIZE AND DEMOGRAPHIC COMPOSITION OF QUALIFYING POPULATIONS

#### Describe the size and demographic composition of qualifying populations within the PJ's boundaries:

The Point In-Time (PIT) Count of the Homeless is an analysis of the sheltered an unsheltered population experiencing homelessness on a single night in January. Continuums of Care (CoCs) are required by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to conduct an annual PIT Count of the population experiencing sheltered homelessness, staying in emergency shelters, safe havens, or transitional housing programs. An additional count of the unsheltered homeless is conducted every other year on odd numbered years.

Unless otherwise specified, information presented in this section is provided by the NJ Counts Report compiled by Monarch Housing Associates and The New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency.

#### HOMELESS INDIVIDUALS, AS DEFINED IN 24 CFR 91.5

The 2022 PIT count identified 625 persons in 529 homeless households on January 25, 2022. Alarmingly, compared to its neighboring counties, the majority (428)<sup>1</sup> of these individuals were from Camden County.

Out the homeless individuals identified, 211 were *"chronically homeless"* and 136 were *"unsheltered"*. Of the sheltered population, 375 were in Emergency shelter and 114 were in Transitional Housing.





<sup>1</sup> This value does not represent the total number of homeless persons counted as some survey responses did not include a municipality

	Total	% of Total	Sheltered	% of Sheltered	Unsheltered	% of Unsheltered
Municipality	Homeless Persons	Homeless Persons	Homeless Persons	Homeless Persons	Homeless Persons	Homeless Persons
Audubon	2	0.4%	2	0.5%	0	0.0%
Bellmawr	6	1.1%	6	1.4%	0	0.0%
Berlin borough	3	0.5%	3	0.7%	0	0.0%
Brooklawn	5	0.9%	5	1.2%	0	0.0%
Camden	428	77.3%	300	71.9%	128	93.4%
Cherry Hill	11	2.0%	11	2.6%	0	0.0%
Clementon	1	0.2%	0	0.0%	1	0.7%
Collingswood	2	0.4%	2	0.5%	0	0.0%
Gloucester City	1	0.2%	0	0.0%	1	0.7%
Gloucester						
township	1	0.2%	0	0.0%	1	0.7%
Lawnside	4	0.7%	4	1.0%	0	0.0%
Lindenwold	3	0.5%	2	0.5%	1	0.7%
Magnolia	1	0.2%	0	0.0%	1	0.7%
Mount						
Ephraim	11	2.0%	10	2.4%	1	0.7%
Pennsauken	3	0.5%	0	0.0%	3	2.2%
Pine Hill	1	0.2%	1	0.2%	0	0.0%
Waterford	7	1.3%	7	1.7%	0	0.0%
Winslow	64	11.6%	64	15.3%	0	0.0%
Total	554*		417		137*	

\*Does not reflect total homeless persons counted as some survey responses may not have included municipality

Out of 441 respondents, 75.5% reported that their last permanent address prior to becoming homeless was inside of Camden County and 18.6% reported that their last address was from elsewhere in NJ. Only 5.9% of respondents said that the y lived outside of NJ prior to becoming homeless.

Out of the 625 homeless individuals surveyed in Camden County, approximately 132 (21%) reported that their last permanent address prior to becoming homeless was outside of the United States.

The 2022 PIT Count showed a strong correlation between poverty and homelessness, marking poverty as a key indicator to the issue. However, upon a closer examination of the racial breakdown Out of the 529 homeless households counted in 2022, 41 (8%) households (130 persons; 81 children) had at least one child under the age of 18. Of these households, 2 (0.4%) families were unsheltered, 36 (6.8%) were in emergency shelters, and 3 (0.6%) families were in transitional housing. Additionally, 65% (406) of homeless persons identified as male, and 33.3% (208) identified as female.

Fig. A.10. Number of Homeless Households by County or State of Last Permanent Address					
Last Permanent Address County/State	Number of Households				
Atlantic County	5				
Burlington County	18				
Camden County	333				
Cape May County	1				
Cumberland County	3				
Essex County	4				
Gloucester County	44				
Mercer County	2				
Salem County	4				
Union County	1				
Delaware	2				
Florida	2				
Louisiana	1				
Massachusetts	2				
Michigan	1				
New York	1				
North Carolina	2				
Ohio	3				
Pennsylvania	9				
South Carolina	2				
Tennessee	1				

of the general population, disparate impacts along racial lines are evident.

The Black or African American non-Hispanic community is overrepresented in the homeless population. While only 18.2% of the population in Camden County, persons identifying as Black or African American made up 48.5% (303) of the population experiencing homelessness.

Astonishingly, 55.5% of the chronically homeless in Camden County identify as Black or African American; and, approximately 39.7% of the unsheltered homeless identify in the same manner. Therefore, race is a critical component of the conversation of homelessness. It appears that race rather than poverty is the more accurate predictive indicator as to whom will experience homelessness.



The next largest racial subgroup of the homeless population in Camden County identified as White (29.6%, 185 counted persons), followed by those identifying as multi-Racial (1.6%, 10 counted persons). Regarding ethnicity, 10.4% of those counted identified themselves as Hispanic/Latino. Given the impact that race so clearly has on homelessness, it is important that homeless service systems make efforts to both understand and address the racial disparities in Camden County to better serve their constituents.





Source – US Census: American Community Survey 2016-20 Estimates



Source - HUD PIT Count Estimates of 2020

### AT RISK OF HOMELESSNESS, AS DEFINED IN 24 DFR 91.5

In Camden County on the night of the PIT count, 39.6% of the households experiencing homelessness had no source of income. Of those surveyed, 9.4% reported having a source of earned income. The most common of these were Social Security Income (17.3%), followed by General Assistance/Welfare Programs, and Social Security Disability Income (SSDI).

Other sources of income reported included Unemployment, Worker's Compensation, Child Support, and Veterans Pension. The average monthly income among households in Emergency Shelter was \$ 676.81, \$4,695.53 for those in Transitional Housing Programs, and \$ 375.90 for the unsheltered. Additionally, out of those surveyed, 12.1% reported having received non-cash benefits such as Medicaid (49.9%), and Food Stamps aka. SNAP (41.6%).



#### Fig. 8: Income by Housing Situation

Cost burden is the ratio of housing costs to household income. It serves as an indicator of housing need, and the need for reduced rental costs. For renters, housing costs is gross rent (contract rent plus utilities). Renter households who spend more than 30% of their income in rent and utilities are considered *"cost burdened"*. Per HOME ARP Guidance, households at risk of homelessness are those whose income falls below 30% of Area Median Income (AMI) that do not have resources or family, friend, or faith-based support networks to prevent homelessness.

Renter households who spend more than 50% of their income on the same are considered *"severely cost burdened"*. Those who fall under the severely cost burdened category are at imminent risk of becoming homeless.

Unless otherwise specified, the information provided in this section is gathered from the CHAS (Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy) database based on 2015-2019 ACS 5-year estimates. This data, broken down by Continuum of Care regions, demonstrates the extent of the housing problems and housing needs in the area of interest, particularly for low-income households.



A household is said to have a housing problem if they have any 1 or more of these problems:

- 1. housing unit lacks complete kitchen facilities
- 2. housing unit lacks complete plumbing facilities
- 3. household is overcrowded
- 4. household is cost burdened

According to CHAS, out of 62,155 renters in Camden County, it is estimated that 32,745 (52.7%) have a housing problem. Of those with a housing problem, 16,540 (50.5%) fall under the 30% HAMFI threshold, and 9,465 (28.9%) fall under the 50% HAMI threshold.

	1	nsive Housing Affordability Strategy by Housing Problems 2015-2019		
	Household has at least 1 of 4 Housing Problems	Household has none of 4 Housing Problems OR cost burden not available no other problems	Total	OWINERS
Household Income <= 30% HAMFI	25,545	6,620	32,165	Dava
Household Income >30% to <=50% HAMFI	18,330	4,455	22,780	
Household Income >50% to <=80% HAMFI	14,590	16,170	30,760	
Household Income >80% to <=100% HAMFI	5,135	14,090	19,225	
Household Income >100% HAMFI	6,065	76,385	82,450	
Total	69,665	117,715	187,385	
Household Income <= 30% HAMFI	16,540	5,175	21,715	
Household Income >30% to <=50% HAMFI	9,465	2,020	11,480	
Household Income >50% to <=80% HAMFI	4,940	6,910	11,850	
Household Income >80% to <=100% HAMFI	905	4,840	5,745	
Household Income >100% HAMFI	895	10,470	11,365	
Total	32,745	29,410	62,155	
Household Income <= 30% HAMFI	9,005	1,445	10,450	
Household Income >30% to <=50% HAMFI	8,865	2,435	11,300	-
Household Income >50% to <=80% HAMFI	9,650	9,260	18,910	
Household Income >80% to <=100% HAMFI	4,230	9,250	13,480	
Household Income >100% HAMFI	5,170	65,915	71,085	
Total	36,920	88,305	125,230	

Source: HUD Comprehensive Housing Affordibility Strategy Data (CHAS) for 2015-2019 \* HUD Area Median Family Income (HAMFI)

There is a significant overlap between income and those households in Camden County which are costburdened. When compared to the racial distribution/concentrations of the homeless populations in Camden County as exemplified in the map of the previous section, one point is evident. The African American community is overrepresented in both the low-income and cost burdened sections of this plan.





Source – US Census



Source - US Census

# FLEEING, OR ATTEMPTING TO FLEE, DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, DATING VIOLENCE, SEXUAL ASSAULT, STALKING, OR HUMAN TRAFFICKING, AS DEFINED BY HUD IN THE HOME-ARP NOTICE

HOME ARP guidelines identify victims of domestic violence as a qualifying population eligible to receive assistance. Specifically, those individuals "Fleeing, or Attempting to Flee, Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, Stalking, or Human Trafficking".

Individuals whom fleeing, or attempting to flee other dangerous or life-threatening conditions that relate to violence against the individual or a family member are also included as part of this qualifying population.

Out of the 625 individuals who identified as homeless on January 25, 2022, 46 (7.4%) were victims of domestic violence. Out of those identified as victims of DV, 41.3% identified as Black/African American. The majority of DV victims were in emergency shelter (31) on the night of the count, the rest (15) were unsheltered.



# OTHER POPULATIONS REQUIRING SERVICES OR HOUSING ASSISTANCE TO PREVENT HOMELESSNESS AND OTHER POPULATIONS AT GREATEST RISK OF HOUSING INSTABILITY, AS DEFINED BY HUD IN THE HOME-ARP NOTICE

#### CHRONICALLY HOMELESS:

Chronically homeless households, as defined by HUD, are those with a long-term disabling condition who have been continually homeless for a year or more, or at least four times in the past three years where the length of time in those episodes add up to a year or more. Supportive services and enhanced case management are required for the chronically homeless once housing is secured.

Of 625 surveyed, 211 (33.8%) individuals were chronically homeless. Just over half of the chronically homeless (108; 51.2%) were in emergency shelter at the night of the count, and the rest (103; 48.8%) were unsheltered. Out of those who identified as chronically homeless, 55.5% also identified as Black / African American, and 64% identified as male.

#### UNSHELTERED HOMELESS:

HUD identifies the unsheltered homeless population as any individual or family ""with a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not designed for or ordinarily used as a regular sleeping accommodation for human beings, including a car, park, abandoned building, bus or train station, airport, or camping ground."



The unsheltered are especially vulnerable in extreme weather conditions; thus, it is imperative to understand why some of the homeless remain unsheltered.

It is also important understand that these categories are not mutually exclusive as one respondent may identify with one or more of these classifications.

#### **VETERANS:**

The United States Interagency Council on Homelessness (USICH) has prioritized ending homelessness among veterans. Thus, veterans are identified as a qualifying population in the HOME ARP guidelines. Veterans are those persons at or above the age of 18 who have served in any branch of the US Armed Forces. For the PIT count this definition also includes those whom have served but are not eligible for services through the U.S Department of Veteran Affairs.





Out of the 625 individuals who identified as homeless on January 25, 2022, 92 (14.7%) were homeless veterans. The majority of veterans were in transitional housing programs (80; 87%), some were in emergency shelter (5), and the rest (7) were unsheltered. Of the homeless veterans identified, 77.2% identified a disability.

45

40

Number

5

Out of the 92 homeless veterans whom responded to this question (129 responses), the most common disability was substance abuse disorder (40), followed by chronic health condition (38) and mental health issues (35). Oher responses included physical disability (14) and developmental disability (2). It is important to understand that these categories are not mutually exclusive, hence the 129 responses form 92 respondents; some veterans identified more than one option.

Fig. 6: Percent of Population with a Disability



Disabled 
 No Disability 
 Missing Information

#### **PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES:**

Out of those individuals whom identified as homeless during the PIT count in January of 2022, 62.2% reported having some type of disability; additionally, 70.6% of adults of 18 years of age or older reported having some disability.

The most common form of disability identified was substance abuse disorder, followed closely by chronic health conditions.



#### HOMELESS YOUTH:

Youth are defined as persons under the age of 25 whom are not accompanied by a parent or guardian. Homeless youth can include individual youth (18-24 years old), unaccompanied minors (17 years old or younger), households of 2 or more youth presenting together as a household, and pregnant or parenting youth who are the legal guardians of one or more children.

Of those surveyed, 40 (6.4%) were homeless youth (individuals and families with heads of household under 24 years old or younger).



#### CURRENT RESOURCES AVAILABLE TO ASSIST QUALIFYING POPULATIONS

Identify and consider the current resources available to assist qualifying populations, including congregate and non-congregate shelter units, supportive services, TBRA, and affordable and permanent supportive rental housing (Optional):

The Housing Inventory Count (HIC) is a point-in-time inventory if provider programs within a CoC that provides beds and units for people experiencing homelessness.

#### Congregate and Non-Congregate Shelter Units

As of 2021, Camden County's homeless system had a total of 741 year-round beds available for people experiencing homelessness in its congregate and non-congregate shelters; 364 (49%) beds for "households with no children" and 377 (51%) beds for "households with children". Of these, 120 were reserved for homeless veterans and 21 for homeless youth.

#### Affordable and Permanent Supportive Rental Housing

As of 2021, Camden County's homeless system had a total of 1273 year-round beds in permanent housing available through Rapid Re-Housing, Permanent Supportive Housing, and Other Permanent Housing programs; 670 (53%) beds were for "households with no children" and 603 (47%) beds are for "households with children". Of these total year-round beds, 410 were reserved for veterans and 59 for homeless youth.

N3-505 - Caniden City & County/Gloucester, Cape May, Cumberland Countes Coc								
	Emergency Shelter (ES)	Transitional Housing (TH)	Safe Haven (SH)	Total Beds				
Total Year-Round Beds	481	260	0	741				
Total Non-DV Year-Round Beds	411	196	0	607				
Total HMIS Year-Round Beds	397	196	0	593				
HMIS Participation Rate for Year-Round Beds	82.54%	75.38%	0.00%					
Total Units for Households with Children	198	20	0	218				
Total Beds for Households with Children	288	89	0	377				
Total Beds for Households without Children	193	171	0	364				
Total Beds for Households with only Children	0	0	0	0				
Dedicated Veteran Beds	0	120	0	120				
Dedicated Youth Beds	0	21	0	21				
Total Seasonal Beds	0	0	0	0				
Total Overflow Beds	342	0	0	342				
Dedicated Chronically Homeless Bed	0	0	0	0				
	Rapid Re-Housing (RRH)	Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH)	Other Permanent Housing (OPH)	Total Permanent Housing				
Total Year-Round Beds	Rapid Re-Housing (RRH) 147							
Total Year-Round Beds Total Non-DV Year-Round Beds		Housing (PSH)	(OPH)	Housing				
	147	Housing (PSH) 1044	(OPH) 82	Housing 1273				
Total Non-DV Year-Round Beds	147 129	Housing (PSH) 1044 1001	(OPH) 82 82	Housing 1273 1212				
Total Non-DV Year-Round Beds Total HMIS Year-Round Beds	147 129 126	Housing (PSH) 1044 1001 594	(OPH) 82 82 68	Housing 1273 1212				
Total Non-DV Year-Round Beds Total HMIS Year-Round Beds HMIS Participation Rate for Year-Round Beds	147 129 126 85.71%	Housing (PSH) 1044 1001 594 56.90%	(OPH) 82 82 68 82.93%	Housing 1273 1212 788				
Total Non-DV Year-Round Beds Total HMIS Year-Round Beds HMIS Participation Rate for Year-Round Beds Total Units for Households with Children	147 129 126 85.71% 34	Housing (PSH) 1044 1001 594 56.90% 210	(OPH) 82 82 68 82.93% 22	Housing 1273 1212 788 266				
Total Non-DV Year-Round Beds Total HMIS Year-Round Beds HMIS Participation Rate for Year-Round Beds Total Units for Households with Children Total Beds for Households with Children	147 129 126 85.71% 34 83	Housing (PSH) 1044 1001 594 56.90% 210 452	(OPH) 82 82 68 82.93% 22 68	Housing 1273 1212 788 266 603				
Total Non-DV Year-Round Beds Total HMIS Year-Round Beds HMIS Participation Rate for Year-Round Beds Total Units for Households with Children Total Beds for Households with Children Total Beds for Households without Children	147 129 126 85.71% 34 83 64	Housing (PSH) 1044 1001 594 56.90% 210 452 592	(OPH) 82 82 68 82.93% 22 68 14	Housing 1273 1212 788 266 603 670				
Total Non-DV Year-Round Beds Total HMIS Year-Round Beds HMIS Participation Rate for Year-Round Beds Total Units for Households with Children Total Beds for Households with Children Total Beds for Households without Children Total Beds for Households with only Children	147 129 126 85.71% 34 83 64 0	Housing (PSH) 1044 1001 594 56.90% 210 452 592 0	(OPH)           82           82           68           82.93%           22           68           14           0	Housing 1273 1212 788 266 603 670 0				
Total Non-DV Year-Round Beds Total HMIS Year-Round Beds HMIS Participation Rate for Year-Round Beds Total Units for Households with Children Total Beds for Households with Children Total Beds for Households without Children Total Beds for Households with only Children Dedicated Veteran Beds	147 129 126 85.71% 34 83 64 0 55	Housing (PSH) 1044 1001 594 56.90% 210 452 592 0 341	(OPH)           82           82           68           82.93%           22           68           14           0           14	Housing 1273 1212 788 266 603 670 0 410				
Total Non-DV Year-Round Beds Total HMIS Year-Round Beds HMIS Participation Rate for Year-Round Beds Total Units for Households with Children Total Beds for Households with Children Total Beds for Households without Children Total Beds for Households with only Children Dedicated Veteran Beds Dedicated Youth Beds	147 129 126 85.71% 34 83 64 0 55 1	Housing (PSH) 1044 1001 594 56.90% 210 452 592 0 341 58	(OPH)           82           82           68           82.93%           22           68           14           0           14           0           14           0	Housing 1273 1212 788 266 603 670 0 410 59				

Housing Inventory Count for 2021 NJ-503 - Camden City & County/Gloucester, Cape May, Cumberland Counties CoC

	Housing Inventory Count Change "Pre & Post" COVID-19												
				Camden C	City & Cour	nty / Glouc	ester, Cape	May, Cuml	berland Cou	nties CoC			
	Emergency Shelter (ES)				Transitional Housing (TH)			Safe Haven (SH)					
		2019	2021	Change		2019	2021	Change		2019	2021	Change	%
Total Year-Round Beds		468	481	13	2.8%	232	260	28	12.1%	0	0	0	
Total Non-DV Year-Round Beds		383	411	28	7.3%	196	196	0	0.0%	0	0	0	
Total HMIS Year-Round Beds		383	397	14	3.7%	196	196	0	0.0%	0	0	0	
HMIS Participation Rate for Year-Round Beds		81.84%	82.54%	0.007	0.9%	84.48%	75.38%	-0.091	-10.8%	0.00%	0.00%	0	
Total Units for Households with Children		196	198	2	1.0%	9	20	11	122.2%	0	0	0	
Total Beds for Households with Children		259	288	29	11.2%	61	89	28	45.9%	0	0	0	
Total Beds for Households without Children		209	193	-16	-7.7%	171	171	0	0.0%	0	0	0	
Total Beds for Households with only Children		0	0	0		0	0	0		0	0	0	
Dedicated Veteran Beds		0	0	0		120	120	0	0.0%	0	0	0	
Dedicated Youth Beds		0	0	0		21	21	0	0.0%	0	0	0	
Total Seasonal Beds		0	0	0			0	0		0	0	0	
Total Overflow Beds		253	342	89	35.2%		0	0		0	0	0	
Dedicated Chronically Homeless Bed		0	0	0		0	0	0		0	0	0	
			Rapid Re-Ho	ousing (RRH	)	Perma	ment Suppor	tive Housing	g (PSH)	Oth	er Permanen	t Housing (C	OPH)
		2019	2021	Change	%	2019	2021	Change	%	2019	2021	Change	%
Total Year-Round Beds		224	147	-77	-34.4%	703	1044	341	48.5%	101	82	-19	-18.8%
Total Non-DV Year-Round Beds		224	129	-95	-42.4%	689	1001	312	45.3%	101	82	-19	-18.8%
Total HMIS Year-Round Beds		224	126	-98	-43.8%	583	594	11	1.9%	81	68	-13	-16.0%
HMIS Participation Rate for Year-Round Beds		1	85.71%	-0.1429	-14.3%	82.93%	56.90%	-0.2603	-31.4%	0.802	82.93%	0.0273	3.4%
Total Units for Households with Children		62	34	-28	-45.2%	159	210	51	32.1%	22	22	0	0.0%
Total Beds for Households with Children		152	83	-69	-45.4%	290	452	162	55.9%	68	68	0	0.0%
Total Beds for Households without Children		72	64	-8	-11.1%	413	592	179	43.3%	33	14	-19	-57.6%
Total Beds for Households with only Children		0	0	0		0	0	0		0	0	0	
Dedicated Veteran Beds		123	55	-68	-55.3%	40	341	301	752.5%	33	14	-19	-57.6%
Dedicated Youth Beds		4	1	-3	-75.0%	58	58	0	0.0%	0	0	0	
Total Seasonal Beds		0	0	0		0	0	0		0	0	0	
Total Overflow Beds		0	0	0		0	0	0		0	0	0	
Dedicated Chronically Homeless Bed		0	0	0		303	607	304	100.3%	0	0	0	
			D 1		1						m . 1 n		
	2010		Beds								Total Perma		
Total Very Devend Deda	2019	2021	Change	%				T-4-1 V	Denned De de	2019	2021	Change	%
Total Year-Round Beds	700	741	41	5.9%			m . 1		r-Round Beds	1028	1273	245	23.8%
Total Non-DV Year-Round Beds	579	607	28	4.8%					r-Round Beds	1014	1212	198	19.5%
Total HMIS Year-Round Beds	579	593	14	2.4%					r-Round Beds	888	788	-100	-11.3%
HMIS Participation Rate for Year-Round Beds									r-Round Beds				
Total Units for Households with Children	205	218	13	6.3%					with Children	243	266	23	9.5%
Total Beds for Households with Children	320	377	57	17.8%					with Children	510	603	93	18.2%
Total Beds for Households without Children	380	364	-16	-4.2%					thout Children	518	670	152	29.3%
Total Beds for Households with only Children	0	0	0			Tota	I Beds for Ho		only Children	0	0	0	
Dedicated Veteran Beds	120	120	0	0.0%					Veteran Beds	196	410	214	109.2%
Dedicated Youth Beds	21	21	0	0.0%					ed Youth Beds	62	59	-3	-4.8%
Total Seasonal Beds	0	0	0						Seasonal Beds	0	0	0	
Total Overflow Beds	253	342	89	35.2%					Overflow Beds	0	0	0	
Dedicated Chronically Homeless Bed	0	0	0				Dedicated	Chronically 1	Homeless Bed	303	607	304	100.3%

# Housing Inventory Count Change "Pre & Post" COVID-19

Data Source: HUD Exchange - PIT and HIC Data Si

### The Impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic on Housing Inventory and Services for the Homeless

3383

The COVID-19 pandemic had a notable impact on the homeless population as well as the services available to them. In Camden County the Rapid Rehousing and Other Permanent Housing were reduced and converted to serve a broader array of homeless individuals. There was minimal re-structuring in Emergency Shelter, Transitional Housing, and Permanent Supportive Housing program as well; but the change was minimal in comparison to the aforementioned. All of the services at the Rapid Re-housing program were cut. However, this was offset by a surge in services offered through the Permanent Supportive Housing program.

From 2019 to 2021 there was an 11.3% reduction in total HMIS year-round beds across programs as well as a 4.8% reduction in dedicated youth beds offered. The total amount of dedicated veteran beds available was doubled due to a drastic increase in veteran-specific services via the Permanent Supportive Housing Program. That same program also doubled its services for the chronically homeless in the same time period. There was an overall increase in services for total non-DV year-round beds, total units and beds for households with children as well as for households without children.



### UNMET HOUSING AND SERVICE NEEDS OF QUALIFYING POPULATIONS

Describe the unmet housing and service needs of qualifying populations

#### HOMELESS INDIVIDUALS, AS DEFINED IN 24 CFR 91.5

The Point-In-Time Count of 2022 reported a total of 625 homeless individuals in Camden County, 211 of which were "chronically homeless". Just a few months prior in 2021, the Home Inventory Count for Camden County reported a year-round bed inventory of 741 total year-round beds. Of these, some beds are reserved for specific populations such as veterans or victims of domestic abuse.

The most notable gap in the data provided by the Point-In-Time and Housing Inventory Counts are in services for homeless households without children and dedicated beds for the chronically homeless. There is also some need for dedicated veteran beds at emergency shelter programs.



#### AT RISK OF HOMELESSNESS, AS DEFINED IN 24 DFR 91.5

Cost burden serves as an indicator of housing need, and the need for reduced rental costs. Renter households who spend more than 30% of their income in rent and utilities are considered "cost burdened" and are at risk of homelessness, especially those that do not have resources or family, friend, or faith-based support networks to prevent homelessness. Renter households who spend more than 50% of their income on the same are considered "severely cost burdened" and are at imminent risk of becoming homeless.

According to the American Community Survey 2020 annual estimates, approximately 523,485 people live in Camden County, and 11.77% (61,612 people) of Camden County residents are living below the poverty line.

According to CHAS, out of 62,155 renters in Camden County, it is estimated that 32,745 (52.7%) have a housing problem. Of those with a housing problem, 16,540 (50.5%) fall under the 30% HAMFI threshold, and 9,465 (28.9%) fall under the 50% HAMI threshold.

## FLEEING, OR ATTEMPTING TO FLEE, DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, DATING VIOLENCE, SEXUAL ASSAULT, STALKING, OR HUMAN TRAFFICKING, AS DEFINED BY HUD IN THE HOME-ARP NOTICE

Out of the 625 individuals who identified as homeless on January 25, 2022, 46 (7.4%) were victims of domestic violence; they were fleeing, or attempting to flee other dangerous or life-threatening conditions that relate to violence against the themselves or a family member. The majority of DV victims were in emergency shelter (31; 67.4%) on the night of the count, and the rest were unsheltered (15; 32.6%).

Those individuals who fall under this qualifying population, require the assistance of intervention services such as counseling, human resources, employment assistance programs and other workplace support services. When access to these services is readily available, DV victims are proven to have a more positive outlook on life and a greater drive to achieve their goals.

# OTHER POPULATIONS REQUIRING SERVICES OR HOUSING ASSISTANCE TO PREVENT HOMELESSNESS AND OTHER POPULATIONS AT GREATEST RISK OF HOUSING INSTABILITY, AS DEFINED BY HUD IN THE HOME-ARP NOTICE

#### VETERANS:

According to the 2022 PIT count, 5 homeless veterans were taking shelter at emergency shelters in Camden County that had no dedicated beds for veterans. While there is increased availability of programming at Permanent Supportive Housing, Rapid Rehousing, and Transitional Housing programs for homeless veterans there is also a need for more dedicated beds at emergency shelters with a specific dedication to homeless veterans.

#### CHRONICALLY HOMELESS, UNSHELTERED, AND PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES

Out of those individuals whom identified as homeless (625) during the PIT count in January of 2022, 211 were *"chronically homeless"* and 136 were *"unsheltered"*. Additionally, 62.2% reported having some type of disability The most common form of disability identified was substance abuse disorder, followed closely by chronic health conditions. Currently, there are no safe haven programs available in Camden County. The Safe Haven model prioritizes harm reduction and takes a housing-first approach to addressing the needs of the homeless populations. Safe havens serve hard-reach homeless persons who reside on the streets or places not meant for human habitation who have severe and persistent mental illness. Typically, these individuals are unable or unwilling to participate in housing or supportive services and thus little to no precondition on established sobriety and documentation is required.

#### GAPS WITHIN CURRENT SHELTER AND HOUSING INVENTORY AND SERVICE DELIVERY SYSTEMS

#### Identify any gaps within the current shelter and housing inventory and the service delivery system

While there is increased availability of programming at Permanent Supportive Housing and Rapid Rehousing programs for households without children, there is a visible gap for more temporary and immediate beds at emergency shelters and transitional housing. As noted throughout this assessment, the chronically homeless are quite underserved. There is no dedicated programming for the chronically homeless population while the majority of the homeless population in Camden County is either chronically homeless and/or unsheltered chronically homeless.



# ADDITIONAL CHARACTERISTICS ASSOCIATED WITH INSTABILITY AND INCREASED RISK OF HOMELESSNESS

Under Section IV.4.2.ii.G of the HOME-ARP Notice, a PJ may provide additional characteristics associated with instability and increased risk of homelessness in their HOME-ARP allocation plan. These characteristics will further refine the definition of "other populations" that are "At Greatest Risk of Housing Instability," as established in the HOME-ARP Notice. If including these characteristics, identify them here:

The PJ does not plan to formally adopt a definition of "other populations". However, in looking at the county as a whole, the Camden County Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice of 2020 highlights a list of other factors as contributors to fair housing issues/impediments. These issues impact all residents in the area, including those at risk of housing instability and homelessness.

#### 1. Lack of Affordable Housing

Housing costs in Camden County are significantly higher than in most of the surrounding areas. Thus, making homeownership inaccessible to many low-and-moderate-income residents who may need assistance in obtaining credit or who may not have sufficient funds to pay for down payment and closing costs.

#### 2. Lack of Coordinated Approach to Fair Housing Issues

Although various fair housing agencies serve county residents, there is no single coordinating effort and/or clearinghouse to guide and coordinate efforts to uphold fair housing in the area. Additionally, there is an increased need for education, outreach, and referral regarding the Fair Housing Act and the New Jersey Law Against Discrimination (LAD).

#### 3. Transportation Availability and Access to Jobs

#### 4. Bias in Lending, Credit Counseling & Money Management

The most common cause of loan denial is lack of credit history or poor credit history, which historically impacts communities of color at an increased rate. Thus, it is important that more consumer education on credit and purchasing a home is available and targeted toward both communities of color and low-and-moderate-income communities.

#### PRIORITY NEEDS FOR QUALIFYING POPULATIONS

Identify priority needs for qualifying populations.

#### HOMELESS INDIVIDUALS, AS DEFINED IN 24 CFR 91.5

Data and consultation point to the priority needs of this population to be improved shelter facilities including additional Non-Congregate Shelter, mental health services and supportive housing or rental assistance with supportive services.

#### AT RISK OF HOMELESSNESS, AS DEFINED IN 24 DFR 91.5

For those at-risk of homelessness, finding affordable rental units post-quarantine has become even more challenging than the data would suggest. According to consultation, eviction processes have begun and there are not enough available affordable rental units in the area. Affordability is more of an issue now, as many landlords are coming off an extended period of lost rent and many folks are not back to work. Even those with mobile housing vouchers are having a challenging time finding rental units in the area because landlords are asking for rental rates far above the "Fair Market Rate" of the voucher. Priority needs for this population include affordable units, vouchers that are greater than FMR, and security/utility deposit assistance.



# FLEEING, OR ATTEMPTING TO FLEE, DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, DATING VIOLENCE, SEXUAL ASSAULT, STALKING, OR HUMAN TRAFFICKING, AS DEFINED BY HUD IN THE HOME-ARP NOTICE

Those individuals who fall under this qualifying population, require the assistance of intervention services such as counseling, human resources, employment assistance programs and other workplace support services. According to the consultation process, these individuals are most in need of vouchers that are greater than FMR, security/utility deposit assistance, credit repair, mental health service and food resources.

# OTHER POPULATIONS REQUIRING SERVICES OR HOUSING ASSISTANCE TO PREVENT HOMELESSNESS AND OTHER POPULATIONS AT GREATEST RISK OF HOUSING INSTABILITY, AS DEFINED BY HUD IN THE HOME-ARP NOTICE

#### VETERANS:

The data shows us the need for more dedicated beds at emergency shelters with a specific dedication to homeless veterans and consultation tells us that veterans are a high need population that need specialized delivery of the same services as the overall homeless and at-risk of homelessness populations.

#### CHRONICALLY HOMELESS, UNSHELTERED, AND PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES

Currently, there are no safe haven programs available in Camden County. There is a need for supportive services for homeless that continue through until after a person is permanently housed and stable.

# DETERMINATION OF LEVEL OF NEED AND GAPS IN SHELTER AND HOUSING INVENTORY AND SERVICE DELIVERY SYSTEMS

# Explain how the PJ determined the level of need and gaps in the PJ's shelter and housing inventory and service delivery systems based on the data presented in the plan.

The level of need and gaps in shelter and housing inventory and service delivery systems was determined by a thorough analysis of the available data as well as through community outreach efforts including but not limited to an online survey, public hearings, and stakeholder interviews. The data presented and discussed in this assessment was collected from the U.S. Census, ACS, CHAS, PIT Count, HIT Counts, and the data from the existing Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice. Stakeholders consulted included the following: the public, the Continuum of Care, homeless service providers, veterans' groups, domestic violence agencies, the public housing agency, and other public or private organizations that address fair housing and the needs for persons with disabilities.

#### **HOME-ARP ACTIVITIES**

# Describe the method(s)that will be used for soliciting applications for funding and/or selecting developers, service providers, subrecipients and/or contractors:

In order to meet the demand for affordable housing, the County will be issuing an RFP for non-profits to manage housing vouchers with wraparound services. An RFP will be released and subrecipient applications accepted.

#### Describe whether the PJ will administer eligible activities directly:

The County will look to partner with subrecipients for all activities and will monitor subrecipient's ability to implement in an effective and compliant manner.

If any portion of the PJ's HOME-ARP administrative funds are provided to a subrecipient or contractor prior to HUD's acceptance of the HOME-ARP allocation plan because the subrecipient or contractor is responsible for the administration of the PJ's entire HOME-ARP grant, identify the subrecipient or contractor and describe its role and responsibilities in administering all of the PJ's HOME-ARP program: Not applicable. In accordance with Section V.C.2. of the Notice (page 4), PJs must indicate the amount of HOME-ARP funding that is planned for each eligible HOME-ARP activity type and demonstrate that any planned funding for nonprofit organization operating assistance, nonprofit capacity building, and administrative costs is within HOME-ARP limits.

	Funding Amount	Percent of the Grant	Statutory Limit
Wraparound Supportive Services	\$ 692,524		
Acquisition and Development of Non-Congregate Shelters	\$#		
Rental Assistance	\$ 2,800,000		
Development of Affordable Rental Housing	\$#		
Non-Profit Operating	\$#	# %	5%
Non-Profit Capacity Building	\$#	# %	5%
Administration and Planning	\$ 616,328	15 %	15%
Total HOME ARP Allocation	\$ 4,108,852		

#### **USE OF HOME-ARP FUNDING**

# Describe how the PJ will distribute HOME-ARP funds in accordance with its priority needs identified in its needs assessment and gap analysis:

The County will distribute HOME-ARP funds in accordance with identified priority needs as the need for more affordable rental housing was a priority throughout the consultation and needs assessment. TBRA with supportive services allows the County to quickly deploy assistance for individuals and families that are at-risk of losing their current housing and those that are looking to transition from emergency housing to more permanent housing. The wraparound services are an important support to stabilize families for a successful tenancy. This is especially important given the reported increase in mental health struggles that has emerged since COVID-19.

# Describe how the characteristics of the shelter and housing inventory, service delivery system, and the needs identified in the gap analysis provided a rationale for the plan to fund eligible activities:

The provision of these supportive vouchers, which can exceed Fair Market Rent (FMR), have the ability to close the gap that currently exists between housing vouchers and the level of rent that the landlord is charging. It is possible that the higher voucher and guarantee of consistent rent will also incentivize landlords to be more flexible on other housing barriers, such as credit score. In addition, the model of combining wraparound services with TBRA will provide households with the housing stability they need so that they can focus on other social service needs – hopefully maintaining housing for those at-risk populations and special populations (such as DV) and offering supportive transitions to long-term rental assistance.

# HOME-ARP PRODUCTION HOUSING GOALS

Estimate the number of affordable rental housing units for qualifying populations that the PJ will produce or support with its HOME-ARP allocation: Not applicable.

Describe the specific affordable rental housing production goal that the PJ hopes to achieve and describe how the production goal will address the PJ's priority needs: Not applicable.

PREFERENCES

A preference provides a priority for the selection of applicants who fall into a specific QP or category (e.g., elderly or persons with disabilities) within a QP (i.e., subpopulation) to receive assistance. A *preference* permits an eligible applicant that qualifies for a PJ-adopted preference to be selected for HOME-ARP assistance before another eligible applicant that does not qualify for a preference. A *method of prioritization* is the process by which a PJ determines how two or more eligible applicants qualifying for the same or different preferences are selected for HOME-ARP assistance. For example, in a project with a preference for chronically homeless, all eligible QP applicants are selected in chronological order for a HOME-ARP rental project except that eligible QP applicants that qualify for the preference of chronically homeless are selected for occupancy based on length of time they have been homeless before eligible QP applicants who do not qualify for the preference of chronically homeless.

Please note that HUD has also described a method of prioritization in other HUD guidance. Section I.C.4 of Notice CPD-17-01 describes Prioritization in CoC CE as follows:

"Prioritization. In the context of the coordinated entry process, HUD uses the term "Prioritization" to refer to the coordinated entry-specific process by which all persons in need of assistance who use coordinated entry are ranked in order of priority. The coordinated entry prioritization policies are established by the CoC with input from all community stakeholders and must ensure that ESG projects are able to serve clients in accordance with written standards that are established under 24 CFR 576.400(e). In addition, the coordinated entry process must, to the maximum extent feasible, ensure that people with more severe service needs and levels of vulnerability are prioritized for housing and homeless assistance before those with less severe service needs and lower levels of vulnerability. Regardless of how prioritization decisions are implemented, the prioritization process must follow the requirements in Section II.B.3. and Section I.D. of this Notice."

If a PJ is using a CE that has a method of prioritization described in CPD-17-01, then a PJ has preferences and a method of prioritizing those preferences. These must be described in the HOME-ARP allocation plan in order to comply with the requirements of Section IV.C.2 (page 10) of the HOME-ARP Notice.

In accordance with Section V.C.4 of the Notice (page 15), the HOME-ARP allocation plan must identify whether the PJ intends to give a preference to one or more qualifying populations or a subpopulation within one or more qualifying populations for any eligible activity or project.

- Preferences cannot violate any applicable fair housing, civil rights, and nondiscrimination requirements, including but not limited to those requirements listed in 24 CFR 5.105(a).
- The PJ must comply with all applicable nondiscrimination and equal opportunity laws and requirements listed in 24 CFR 5.105(a) and any other applicable fair housing and civil rights laws and requirements when establishing preferences or methods of prioritization.

While PJs are not required to describe specific projects in its HOME-ARP allocation plan to which the preferences will apply, the PJ must describe the planned use of any preferences in its HOME-ARP allocation plan. This requirement also applies if the PJ intends to commit HOME-ARP funds to projects that will utilize preferences or limitations to comply with restrictive eligibility requirements of another project funding source. If a PJ fails to describe preferences or limitations in its plan, it cannot commit HOME-ARP funds to a project that will implement a preference or limitation until the PJ amends its HOME-ARP allocation plan.

For HOME-ARP rental housing projects, Section VI.B.20.a.iii of the HOME-ARP Notice (page 36) states that owners may only limit eligibility or give a preference to a particular qualifying population or segment of the qualifying population <u>if the limitation or preference is described in the PJ's HOME-ARP allocation plan</u>. Adding a preference or limitation not previously described in the plan requires a substantial amendment and a public comment period in accordance with Section V.C.6 of the Notice (page 16).



# Identify whether the PJ intends to give preference to one or more qualifying populations or a subpopulation within one or more qualifying populations for any eligible activity or project:

There will be no preferences utilized in this project. A preference permits an eligible applicant that qualifies for a PJ-adopted preference to be selected for HOME-ARP assistance before another eligible applicant that does not qualify for a preference. This project will operate in accordance with all fair housing, civil rights, and nondiscrimination requirements.

If a preference was identified, explain how the use of a preference or method of prioritization will address the unmet need or gap in benefits and services received by individuals and families in the qualifying population or subpopulation of the qualifying population, consistent with the PJ's needs assessment and gap analysis: There was no preference identified.

### **REFERRAL METHODS**

PJs are not required to describe referral methods in the plan. However, if a PJ intends to use a coordinated entry (CE) process for referrals to a HOME-ARP project or activity, the PJ must ensure compliance with Section IV.C.2 of the Notice (page10).

A PJ may use only the CE for direct referrals to HOME-ARP projects and activities (as opposed to CE and other referral agencies or a waitlist) if the CE expands to accept all HOME-ARP qualifying populations and implements the preferences and prioritization <u>established by the PJ in its HOME-ARP allocation plan</u>. A direct referral is where the CE provides the eligible applicant directly to the PJ, subrecipient, or owner to receive HOME-ARP TBRA, supportive services, admittance to a HOME-ARP rental unit, or occupancy of a NCS unit. In comparison, an indirect referral is where a CE (or other referral source) refers an eligible applicant for placement to a project or activity waitlist. Eligible applicants are then selected for a HOME-ARP project or activity from the waitlist.

The PJ must require a project or activity to use CE along with other referral methods (as provided in Section IV.C.2.ii) or to use only a project/activity waiting list (as provided in Section IV.C.2.iii) if:

- 1. the CE does not have a sufficient number of qualifying individuals and families to refer to the PJ for the project or activity;
- 2. the CE does not include all HOME-ARP qualifying populations; or,
- 3. the CE fails to provide access and implement uniform referral processes in situations where a project's geographic area(s) is broader than the geographic area(s) covered by the CE

If a PJ uses a CE that prioritizes one or more qualifying populations or segments of qualifying populations (e.g., prioritizing assistance or units for chronically homeless individuals first, then prioritizing homeless youth second, followed by any other individuals qualifying as homeless, etc.) then this constitutes the use of preferences and a method of prioritization. To implement a CE with these preferences and priorities, the PJ **must** include the preferences and method of prioritization that the CE will use in the preferences section of their HOME-ARP allocation plan. Use of a CE with embedded preferences or methods of prioritization that are not contained in the PJ's HOME-ARP allocation does not comply with Section IV.C.2 of the Notice (page10).

Identify the referral methods that the PJ intends to use for its HOME-ARP projects and activities. PJ's may use multiple referral methods in its HOME-ARP program. (Optional):

The PJ will follow their typical management process for rental assistance.

If the PJ intends to use the coordinated entry (CE) process established by the CoC, describe whether all qualifying populations eligible for a project or activity will be included in the CE process, or the method by which all qualifying populations eligible for the project or activity will be covered. (Optional): All qualifying populations will be eligible for a project or activity. There will be no preferences.

# If the PJ intends to use the CE process established by the CoC, describe the method of prioritization to be used by the CE. (Optional):

All qualifying populations will be eligible for a project or activity. There will be no preferences.

If the PJ intends to use both a CE process established by the CoC and another referral method for a project or activity, describe any method of prioritization between the two referral methods, if any. (Optional): There will be no prioritization. Clients will be served on first-come, first-served basis.

## LIMITATIONS IN A HOME-ARP RENTAL HOUSING OR NCS PROJECT

Limiting eligibility for a HOME-ARP rental housing or NCS project is only permitted under certain circumstances.

- PJs must follow all applicable fair housing, civil rights, and nondiscrimination requirements, including but not limited to those requirements listed in 24 CFR 5.105(a). This includes, but is not limited to, the Fair Housing Act, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, section 504 of Rehabilitation Act, HUD's Equal Access Rule, and the Americans with Disabilities Act, as applicable.
- A PJ may not exclude otherwise eligible qualifying populations from its overall HOME-ARP program.
- Within the qualifying populations, participation in a project or activity may be limited to persons with a specific disability only, if necessary, to provide effective housing, aid, benefit, or services that would be as effective as those provided to others in accordance with 24 CFR 8.4(b)(1)(iv). A PJ must describe why such a limitation for a project or activity is necessary in its HOME-ARP allocation plan (based on the needs and gap identified by the PJ in its plan) to meet some greater need and to provide a specific benefit that cannot be provided through the provision of a preference.
- For HOME-ARP rental housing, section VI.B.20.a.iii of the Notice (page 36) states that owners may only limit eligibility to a particular qualifying population or segment of the qualifying population <u>if the limitation is described in the PJ's HOME-ARP allocation plan</u>.
- PJs may limit admission to HOME-ARP rental housing or NCS to households who need the specialized supportive services that are provided in such housing or NCS. However, no otherwise eligible individuals with disabilities or families including an individual with a disability who may benefit from the services provided may be excluded on the grounds that they do not have a particular disability.

# Describe whether the PJ intends to limit eligibility for a HOME-ARP rental housing or NCS project to a particular qualifying population or specific subpopulation of a qualifying population identified in section IV.A of the Notice:

The PJ does not intend to limit eligibility.

If a PJ intends to implement a limitation, explain why the use of a limitation is necessary to address the unmet need or gap in benefits and services received by individuals and families in the qualifying population or subpopulation of qualifying population, consistent with the PJ's needs assessment and gap analysis: The PJ does not intend to implement a limitation.

If a limitation was identified, describe how the PJ will address the unmet needs or gaps in benefits and services of the other qualifying populations that are not included in the limitation through the use of HOME-ARP funds (i.e., through another of the PJ's HOME-ARP projects or activities): There was no limitation identified.

# HOME-ARP REFINANCING GUIDELINES

If the PJ intends to use HOME-ARP funds to refinance existing debt secured by multifamily rental housing that is being rehabilitated with HOME-ARP funds, the PJ must state its HOME-ARP refinancing guidelines in accordance with <u>24 CFR 92.206(b)</u>. The guidelines must describe the conditions under with the PJ will refinance existing debt for a HOME-ARP rental project, including:



• Establish a minimum level of rehabilitation per unit or a required ratio between rehabilitation and refinancing to demonstrate that rehabilitation of HOME-ARP rental housing is the primary eligible activity

Not applicable. The PJ does not plan to use HOME-ARP funds to refinance existing debt.

- Require a review of management practices to demonstrate that disinvestment in the property has not occurred; that the long-term needs of the project can be met; and that the feasibility of serving qualified populations for the minimum compliance period can be demonstrated. Not applicable. The PJ does not plan to use HOME-ARP funds to refinance existing debt.
- State whether the new investment is being made to maintain current affordable units, create additional affordable units, or both. Not applicable. The PJ does not plan to use HOME-ARP funds to refinance existing debt.
- Specify the required compliance period, whether it is the minimum 15 years or longer. Not applicable. The PJ does not plan to use HOME-ARP funds to refinance existing debt.
- State that HOME-ARP funds cannot be used to refinance multifamily loans made or insured by any federal program, including CDBG.
   Not applicable. The PJ does not plan to use HOME-ARP funds to refinance existing debt.
- **Other requirements in the PJ's guidelines, if applicable:** Not applicable. The PJ does not plan to use HOME-ARP funds to refinance existing debt.

		United States	SS	New Jersey	ey	Camden County	unty
	Hispanic or Latino	62,080,044	18.73%	2,002,575	21.56%	95,255	18.20%
uo	Not Hispanic or Latino:	269,369,237	81.27%	7,286,419	78.44%	428,230	81.80%
itel	Population of one race:	255,820,254	77.18%	6,996,948	75.33%	410,104	78.34%
ndc	White alone	191,697,647	74.93%	4,816,381	68.84%	279,274	68.10%
оЧ э	Black or African American alone	39,940,338	15.61%	1,154,142	16.49%	95,135	23.20%
dt fo r	American Indian and Alaska Native alone	2,251,699	0.88%	11,206	0.16%	692	0.17%
totti	Asian alone	19,618,719	7.67%	942,921	13.48%	32,328	7.88%
isoduu	Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander alone	622,018	0.24%	1,944	0.03%	66	0.02%
וכי	Some Other Race alone	1,689,833	0.66%	70,354	1.01%	2,576	0.63%
sia	Population of two or more races:	13,548,983	4.09%	289,471	3.12%	18,126	3.46%
ßЯ	Population of two races:	12,637,189	3.81%	272,852	2.94%	16,841	3.22%
zg c	Population of three races:	830,158	0.25%	14,950	0.16%	1,192	0.23%
oinn	Population of four races:	71,529	0.02%	1,449	0.02%	83	0.02%
Eti	Population of five races:	9,103	0.00%	197	0.00%	6	0.00%
	Population of six races:	1,004	0.00%	23	0.00%	1	0.00%
	Total:	331,449,281	1	9,288,994	14	523,485	

# APPENDIX A

[	Emergency Shelter (ES)	Transitional Housing (TH)	Safe Haven (SH)	Total
Unsheltered Homeless				109
Sheltered Chronically Homeless	167	0	0	167
Sheltered Chronically Homeless Individuals	135	0	0	135
Sheltered Chronically Homeless People In Families	32	0	0	32
Sheltered Homeless	699	127	0	826
Sheltered Homeless Individuals	473	113	0	586
Homeless Family Households	73	5	0	78
Sheltered Homeless People In Families	226	14	0	240
Sheltered Homeless Veterans	17	88	0	105
Sheltered Unnacompanied Youth	20	17	0	37
Sheltered Homeless Children of Parenting Youth	14	1	0	15
Sheltered Homeless Parenting Youth	0	0	0	0

Point - In - Time Count for 2021 NJ-503 Camden City & County/Gloucester, Cape May, Cumberland Counties CoC

	The Estimat	ed Population	of Camden Co	unty, New Jer	sey by Age and	d Sex
AGE	To	tal	Ma	ale	Fen	nale
Under 5 years	30,909	5.90%	15,928	6.30%	14,981	5.60%
5 to 9 years	34,354	6.60%	17,995	7.10%	16,359	6.10%
10 to 14 years	32,756	6.30%	16,298	6.40%	16,458	6.10%
15 to 19 years	32,021	6.10%	16,776	6.60%	15,245	5.70%
20 to 24 years	30,655	5.90%	15,241	6.00%	15,414	5.70%
25 to 29 years	35,052	6.70%	17,351	6.80%	17,701	6.60%
30 to 34 years	37,203	7.10%	18,310	7.20%	18,893	7.00%
35 to 39 years	39,575	7.60%	20,293	8.00%	19,282	7.20%
40 to 44 years	30,479	5.80%	14,010	5.50%	16,469	6.10%
45 to 49 years	31,507	6.00%	15,253	6.00%	16,254	6.00%
50 to 54 years	34,404	6.60%	16,650	6.50%	17,754	6.60%
55 to 59 years	35,380	6.80%	16,610	6.50%	18,770	7.00%
60 to 64 years	34,377	6.60%	16,876	6.60%	17,501	6.50%
65 to 69 years	28,266	5.40%	13,211	5.20%	15,055	5.60%
70 to 74 years	23,477	4.50%	10,769	4.20%	12,708	4.70%
75 to 79 years	14,180	2.70%	5,429	2.10%	8,751	3.20%
80 to 84 years	9,086	1.70%	3,915	1.50%	5,171	1.90%
85 years and over	10,090	1.90%	3,557	1.40%	6,533	2.40%
SELECTED AGE CATEGORIES			_			
5 to 14 years	67,110	12.80%	34,293	13.50%	32,817	12.20%
15 to 17 years	20,902	4.00%	10,900	4.30%	10,002	3.70%
Under 18 years	118,921	22.70%	61,121	24.00%	57,800	21.50%
18 to 24 years	41,774	8.00%	21,117	8.30%	20,657	7.70%
15 to 44 years	204,985	39.10%	101,981	40.10%	103,004	38.20%
16 years and over	418,498	79.90%	200,318	78.70%	218,180	81.00%
18 years and over	404,850	77.30%	193,351	76.00%	211,499	78.50%
21 years and over	387,511	74.00%	184,094	72.30%	203,417	75.50%
60 years and over	119,476	22.80%	53,757	21.10%	65,719	24.40%
62 years and over	106,393	20.30%	47,007	18.50%	59,386	22.10%
65 years and over	85,099	16.20%	36,881	14.50%	48,218	17.90%
75 years and over	33,356	6.40%	12,901	5.10%	20,455	7.60%
SUMMARY INDICATORS						
Median age (years)	38.6	(X)	37.4	(X)	40.1	(X)
Sex ratio (males per 100 females)	94.5	(X)	(X)	(X)	(X)	(X)
Age dependency ratio	63.8	(X)	(X)	(X)	(X)	(X)
Old-age dependency ratio	26.6	(X)	(X)	(X)	(X)	(X)
Child dependency ratio	37.2	(X)	(X)	(X)	(X)	(X)
PERCENT ALLOCATED						
Sex	(X)	0.10%	(X)	(X)	(X)	(X)
Age	(X)	1.20%	(X)	(X)	(X)	(X)
Total population	523,771	$(\mathbf{X})$	254,472	(X)	269,299	(X)

The Estimated Population of Camden County, New Jersey by Age and Sex

Source: ACS 1-Year Estimates Subject Tables

International (international)         International (international)         International (international)         International (international)         International (international)         International (international)         International (international)         International (international)         International         Internationa         International         Inter	Under 18 Age 18 to 24 Over 24 Fernalde Fernalde Matie Transgender Gender Non-Conforming Non-Hispanic/Non-Latino Hispanic/Latino Hispanic/Latino Mitie Black or African American Asian Asian	2005 124 52 584 584 584 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 2108 200 2108 200 2108 200 2108 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 2		omdeless Change 3 6 2 2 2 3 4 5 2 3 2 4 5 4 5 4 5 5 2 5 2 5 2 5 2 5 2 5 2 6 2 6 2 6 2 6 2 6 2 6 2 6 2 6 2 6 2 6		2019 2019 2019 202 202 202 201 201 201 201 201 201 201	Sheltered Homeles 2021 9 2021 544 586 206 206 378 206 507 799 586 586 586 292 292 292 292 292 292 293 51 1 1 1 1 86 51 56 507 507 507 507 507 507 507 507 507 507	St Individuals Competing 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 2 3 2 3 2 3 2 3 2 3 2 3	96 330.0% -5.7% 3.6% -4.8% 100.0% 1.2% 29.5% 29.5% 29.5% 29.5% 29.5% 50.0% 50.0%	2019 2019 59 59 198 198 198 198 198 198 198 198 198	Sheltered Homeless 2021 151 151 151 13 240 149 149 149 149 149 149 149 14 240 153 131 131 131 131 131 131 131 131 131	People In Families <i>Change</i> 29 41 42 20 21 21	% 23.8% -23.5% 28.8% 28.8% 30.4% #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Under 18 Age 18 to 24 Over 24 Frande Made Transgender Gender Non-Conforming Non-Hispanic-Non-Latino Hispanic-Non-Latino Hispanic-Latino Hispanic-Latino Alasta Nati- Black or Africian American Asian Annerican Indian or Alaska Nati-e	2019 2019 584 584 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010 201	2021 16(6) 46 826 826 826 826 826 825 11 1 1 1 825 825 825 825 826 826 826 826	Change 36 36 36 36 39 39 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30		2019 22 525 502 502 502 503 503 503 503 503 503 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	2021 2021 2021 333 544 206 376 379 586 586 586 292 288 292 288 292 288 293 36 5 8 5 8 6 5 8 8 5 8 8 5 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	Olonge 2010 21 21 21 22 23 23 23 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24	350.0% -55.7% 3.6% -4.8% 100.0% 29.5% 29.5% -9.5% -9.5% 50.0% 50.0% 50.0%	2019 2019 172 198 198 198 198 198 198 198 198 198	2027 1511 1511 1512 160 140 140 140 1513 1511 1513 1511 1513 1511 1513 1511 1513 1511 1512 1513 1513	Change 29 21 21 20 21 21 21	% 23.8% -25.5% 28.8% 15.5% 30.4% #DIV.0! #DIV.0!
12         13         13         13         13         13         13         13         13           13         13         13         13         13         13         13         13         13           14         13         13         13         13         13         13         13         13         13           15         13 <td>Under 18 Age 18 to 24 Age 18 to 24 Cover 24 Fernale Fernale Male Transgender Gender Non-Conforming Non-Hispanic Non-Latino Hispanic/Latino Hispanic/Latino Hispanic/Latino Hispanic/Latino Allek of African American Annerican Annerican Indian or Alakia Naive</td> <td>124 512 518 518 519 519 519 519 519 519 519 519 519 519</td> <td>160 620 620 826 826 935 826 153 355 1 1 53 5 826 826 826 826</td> <td>8 9 8 8 0 0 0 8 7 8 8 7 6 7 7 9 8 8 8 9 8 0 0 0 8 7 8 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 8 8 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 9</td> <td></td> <td>2 33 502 164 1 1 1 1 80 61 502 296 29 29 6 4 4 5 5 50 2011-III-TTime Count NJ-500 Atla</td> <td>9 9 844 846 846 206 378 206 586 586 292 286 292 268 286 286 286 268 3 1 1 5 86 268 386 268 386 268 386 386 386 386 386 386 386 386 386 3</td> <td>61</td> <td>350.0% -5.7% 3.6% -4.8% 100.0% 29.5% -29.5% -50.0% 50.0% 50.0%</td> <td>122 123 198 198 198 198 198 198 102 198 198</td> <td>151 153 240 240 240 240 240 240 240 240 240 240</td> <td>29 - 4 - 20 21 -</td> <td>23.8% -23.5% 28.8% 15.5% #DIV/0! #DIV/0!</td>	Under 18 Age 18 to 24 Age 18 to 24 Cover 24 Fernale Fernale Male Transgender Gender Non-Conforming Non-Hispanic Non-Latino Hispanic/Latino Hispanic/Latino Hispanic/Latino Hispanic/Latino Allek of African American Annerican Annerican Indian or Alakia Naive	124 512 518 518 519 519 519 519 519 519 519 519 519 519	160 620 620 826 826 935 826 153 355 1 1 53 5 826 826 826 826	8 9 8 8 0 0 0 8 7 8 8 7 6 7 7 9 8 8 8 9 8 0 0 0 8 7 8 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 8 8 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 9		2 33 502 164 1 1 1 1 80 61 502 296 29 29 6 4 4 5 5 50 2011-III-TTime Count NJ-500 Atla	9 9 844 846 846 206 378 206 586 586 292 286 292 268 286 286 286 268 3 1 1 5 86 268 386 268 386 268 386 386 386 386 386 386 386 386 386 3	61	350.0% -5.7% 3.6% -4.8% 100.0% 29.5% -29.5% -50.0% 50.0% 50.0%	122 123 198 198 198 198 198 198 102 198 198	151 153 240 240 240 240 240 240 240 240 240 240	29 - 4 - 20 21 -	23.8% -23.5% 28.8% 15.5% #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
1         1	Age 18 to 24 Age 18 to 24 Permate Remate Gender Non-Conforming Non-Hispanic/Non-Latino Hispanic/Latino Hispanic/Latino Mite Black or Arrican American Asian Annerican Indian or Alaska Native	52 584 269 760 165 108 760 760 760 761 8 8 8 8 760 760	46 46 828 826 826 826 826 153 153 153 153 153 153 826 826 826 826	8 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8		35 525 562 164 164 1 1 0 562 569 562 249 562 249 5 5 5 562 560 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500	<ul> <li>33</li> <li>544</li> <li>586</li> <li>206</li> <li>378</li> <li>378</li> <li>378</li> <li>378</li> <li>586</li> <li>507</li> <li>507</li> <li>507</li> <li>507</li> <li>516</li> <li>51</li> <li>56</li> <li>51</li> <li>56</li> <li>57</li> <li>58</li> <li>58</li></ul>	64	-5.7% 3.6% 25.6% 1-0.0% 11.2% 29.5% 29.5% -50.0% 50.0% 50.0%	17 198 198 198 198 198 198 192 812 812 198 198	13 240 240 240 240 240 240 240 240 240 240	-4 17 20 21 1	-23.5% 28.8% 15.5% #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
38         60         8         61         35         35         35         36<	Over 24 Fermale Made Transgender Gender Non-Conforming Non-Hispanic-Non-Latino Hispanic-Latino Hispanic-Latino Black or African American Asian Asian	584 760 293 466 662 760 760 351 351 351 351 351 351 351 351 351 351	620 826 335 335 468 33 673 826 826 826 335 335 335 335 335 826 826 826 826 826	88 89		525 562 164 397 1 1 0 562 562 562 296 296 296 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 50ittl-Ih-Time Count NJ-500 Atla	544 586 2066 378 378 378 586 586 586 292 286 292 286 293 586 16 586 586 586 586 386 586 586 586 586 586 586 586 586 586 5	19 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22	3.6% 25.6% -4.5% 100.0% 29.5% -9.5% -9.5% -50.0% 50.0% 22.00%	59 198 129 139 198 131 131 138 138 138 138 138 138 138 13	76 240 149 149 149 149 149 151 151 151 151 151 151 151 151 151 15	17 42 20 21	28.8% 15.5% #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Frande Made Transgouder Gender Non-Conforming Non-Hispanic/Non-Latino Hispanic/Latino Hispanic/Latino Black or African American Asian Annerican Indian or Alaska Naive	760 293 466 760 760 331 335 760 760 8 8 8 8 8 760 760	826 355 468 826 826 826 826 826 9 355 355 355 355 826 826	8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8		562 164 164 1 1 562 562 562 249 562 286 2 5 5 5 5 5 50int-Ih-Time Count NJ-500 Atla	586 206 378 2 6 6 586 586 586 292 292 292 292 268 1 1 3 6 16 586 586 586 386 586 586 586 586 586 586 586 586 586 5	24 42 43 43 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45	25.6% -4.8% 1100.0% 29.5% -50.0% -50.0% 50.0% 20.0%	198 129 89 198 198 198 198 81 20 82 8 10 10 10 10 10	240 149 240 240 240 240 240 240 240 240 240 240	42 20 1	15.5% 30.4% #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
30         30<	Fernale Male Male Transgender Gender Non-Conforming Non-Hispanic/Non-Latino Hispanic/Non-Latino Hispanic/Latino Hispanic/Latino Hispanic/Latino Anino Black or African American Asian Anaerican Indian or Alaska Nuive	293 466 652 652 108 760 760 351 351 351 351 351 351 351 351 351 351	3355 468 826 826 826 153 153 153 153 355 355 355 355 355 355	62 21 23 24 58 85 20 1 20 20 20		164 11 1 0 562 562 562 249 5 249 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	206 2078 2 586 587 587 79 586 268 268 268 268 586 586 586 586 antic City & Count	42 	25.6% -4.8% 100.09% 1.2% 29.5% -50.9% -50.0% 50.0% -50.0%	129 69 69 198 151 198 102 82 82 82 82 82 10 82 83 10 83 10 83	149 90 240 240 74 731 131 131 0 0	20 21	15.5% 30.4% #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
16         10<	Male Transgender Gender Non-Conforming Non-Hispanic/Non-Latino Hispanic/Latino Hispanic/Latino Black or African American Asian Anterican Indian or Alaska Nui ve	466 1 682 760 760 351 351 351 351 351 351 351 358 8 8 8 8 8 8	468 3 673 1153 1153 1153 1153 335 335 335 335 33	2 2 2 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8		397 1 1 6 562 562 562 296 296 29 6 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 0int-In-Time Count NJ-500 Atla	378 2 2 886 507 79 586 292 292 298 298 268 1 6 586 586 586 586 386 586 586 586 586 586 586 586 586 586 5		-4.8% 100.0% 29.5% -9.5% -50.0% 50.0% 50.0%	69 0 198 151 198 198 82 8 8 0 0 0 10 198	90 1 - 1 166 156 151 151 151 151 151 151	1 1	30.4% #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
1         1	Transgeuder Geuder Non-Conforming Non-Hispanic-Non-Latino Hispanic-Latino Hispanic-Latino Black or African American Asian Asian	1 260 331 331 331 331 335 335 335 335 335 335	3 826 673 826 826 153 355 355 355 355 355 355 355 355 355	2 66 45 72 72 1  1 1 20 86		1 0 562 562 562 562 296 296 296 296 5 5 5 5 501 1-Ih-Time Count	2 0 586 507 79 79 79 286 286 268 268 1 1 586 586 586 586 586 586 586 586 586 586		100.0% 1.2% 2.9.5% -9.5% -50.0% 50.0% 2.20.0%	0 198 131 131 198 198 8 2 2 8 2 0 0 1 1 8 1 2 8 1 2 8 1 2 8 1 2 8 1 2 8 1 2 8 1 2 8 1 2 8 1 2 8 1 1 8 1 1 1 8 1 1 1 8 1 1 1 1	1 0 166 166 74 240 83 87 0	-	#DIV/0!
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Gender Non-Conforming Non-Hispanic/Non-Latino Hispanic/Latino White Black or Artican American Asian Asian	0 769 108 351 351 351 358 351 378 6 8 760 760	0 826 826 826 423 355 1 1 35 35 826 826	0 85 85 85 85 85 1 20 20 20 86		0 562 501 501 562 249 236 2 26 5 5 5 50111-Ih-Time Count NJ-500 Atla	0 586 507 79 586 292 286 292 286 1 6 16 586 586 586 586 586 500tt	0 24 8 8 8 4 3 8 4 4 7 1 1 1 2 8 1 2 4 8 1 1 2 8 1 2 3 8 1 2 3 8 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12	1,2% 29,5% 17,3% -50,0% -50,0% 50,0% 220,0%	0 198 151 198 102 82 82 82 8 7 8 10 10	0 240 166 74 240 240 87 0		#DIV/0i
90         93         94<	Non-Hispanic/Non-Latino Hispanic/Latino Mitie Black or African American Asian American Indim or Alaska Native	760 652 200 351 351 351 351 351 6 8 8 8 760	826 673 153 826 826 35 3 3 3 826 826	86 45 45 23 23 20 20 20		562 501 565 565 246 246 6 6 6 5 5 5 5 500 11-II-TTme Count	886 507 507 586 288 292 208 1 1 5 6 586 586 586 586 586 586 586 586 586	24 6 18 23 23 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24	29.5% 29.5% -9.5% -9.5% -50.0% -50.0% 220.0%	198 151 198 198 102 82 82 82 10 10 108	240 166 74 240 131 131 87 0	c	
610         610         73         7	Non-Hispanic/Non-Latino Hispanic/Latino Black or African American Asian American Indian or Alaska Nui ve	652 653 769 351 351 378 6 8 8 8 760	673 1153 8.26 8.26 3.423 3.55 3.5 3.5 8.26 8.26	21 24 26 27 27 28 28 29 29 29 29 29 29 29 29 29 29 29 29 29		501 61 562 562 236 236 2 6 6 6 5 562 562 562 562 562 562 562	507 79 79 286 292 268 268 586 586 586 586 antic City & Count	6 18 24 43 43 43 43 43 43 11 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24	1.2% 29.5% 17.3% -9.5% -50.0% 50.0% 220.0%	151 47 102 82 82 0 0 10 10 108	166 74 240 131 131 0	42	
100         100 <td>Haptanov variance HaptanocLatino White Black or African American Asian American Indian or Alaska Nati ve</td> <td>100 100 335 355 355 355 355 357 8 8 8 8 8 7 60 7 60 7 60 7 8 8</td> <td>153 153 355 355 355 355 355 355 355 355</td> <td>45 66 72 1</td> <td></td> <td>61 562 249 296 296 4 4 5 5 502 502 502 502 502 502 502 502 502</td> <td>79 286 292 292 268 268 3 1 3 6 56 56 56 56 56 586 586 586 586 586 58</td> <td>18 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24</td> <td>29.5% 29.5% -9.5% -50.0% 50.0% 220.0%</td> <td>47. 198 82 82 82 82 82 102 103</td> <td>240 240 131 87 0</td> <td>i i</td> <td>0.0%</td>	Haptanov variance HaptanocLatino White Black or African American Asian American Indian or Alaska Nati ve	100 100 335 355 355 355 355 357 8 8 8 8 8 7 60 7 60 7 60 7 8 8	153 153 355 355 355 355 355 355 355 355	45 66 72 1		61 562 249 296 296 4 4 5 5 502 502 502 502 502 502 502 502 502	79 286 292 292 268 268 3 1 3 6 56 56 56 56 56 586 586 586 586 586 58	18 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24	29.5% 29.5% -9.5% -50.0% 50.0% 220.0%	47. 198 82 82 82 82 82 102 103	240 240 131 87 0	i i	0.0%
10         10<	rispance, anno White Black or African American Asian American Indian or Alaska Nati ve	760 351 378 378 6 6 115 760	826 123 355 3 3 3 8 2 6 8 2 6	68 21 1- 1- 20 20		562 562 246 296 5 5 552 562 5011-Ih-Time Count NJ-500 Atla	292 298 292 268 268 1 3 6 5 86 586 586 586 586 586 586 586 586	218 224 43 	25.5% 17.3% -50.0% -50.0% 220.0%	47 198 102 82 82 0 10 10 198	74 240 87 0	2 8	0.00
(1)         (2) <th(2)< th=""> <th(2)< th=""> <th(2)< th=""></th(2)<></th(2)<></th(2)<>	White Black or African American Asian American Indim or Alaska Native	760 331 378 378 6 6 760 760	826 823 355 355 335 35 826	66 23  20 20 20		562 249 296 6 4 55 562 562 562 562 562 562 562 562 562	286 292 292 268 3 6 16 586 586 586 16 8 8 8 10 8 8 10 8 10 8 10 8 10 8 1	24 43 	17.3% -9.5% -50.0% -50.0% 220.0%	198 102 82 0 10 10	240 131 87 0	27	57.4%
381         323         323         324         325         326         325         326 <td>White Black or African American Asian American Indian or Alaska Naiive</td> <td>351 378 6 6 760</td> <td>423 355 9 3 26</td> <td>72 20</td> <td></td> <td>249 296 2 6 5 5 50int-In-Time Count NJ-500 Atla</td> <td>292 268 268 16 6 86 86 86 16 16 86 antic City &amp; Count</td> <td>43 </td> <td>17.3% -9.5% -50.0% -50.0% 220.0%</td> <td>102 82 0 10 198</td> <td>131 87 0</td> <td>42</td> <td></td>	White Black or African American Asian American Indian or Alaska Naiive	351 378 6 6 760	423 355 9 3 26	72 20		249 296 2 6 5 5 50int-In-Time Count NJ-500 Atla	292 268 268 16 6 86 86 86 16 16 86 antic City & Count	43 	17.3% -9.5% -50.0% -50.0% 220.0%	102 82 0 10 198	131 87 0	42	
10         10<	Black or African American Asian American Indian or Alaska Native	378 2 6 8 15 760	355 1 35 826	-2.3 - 1 - 2.0 6.6		296 2 6 4 5 5 5 5 0int-In-Time Count NJ-500 Atla	268 1 3 6 16 586 586 Change "Pre & Pe antic City & Count Sheltered Homeless 1	-28 -1 -3 -3 -3 -3 -2 -11 -24 -0st" COVID-19	-9.5% -50.0% 50.0% 220.0%	82 0 10 198	87 0	29	28.4%
1         1         1         0         0         1         0	American Indian or Alaska Native	2 6 15 760	1 3 35 826	-1 -3 20 -1 -3 66		2 6 4 5 562 Soint-In-Time Count NJ-500 Atla	1 3 6 16 586 586 Change "Pre & Pr antic City & Count Sheltered Homeless	-1 -3 -3 -3 -3 -3 -3 -3 -3 -3 -3 -1 -1 -1 -2 -2 -2 -2 -2 -2 -2 -2 -3 -3 -3 -3 -3 -3 -3 -3 -3 -3 -3 -3 -3	-50.0% -50.0% 220.0%	0 4 4 198	0	5	6.1%
0         0	American Indian or Alaska Native	6 8 760	33 o a			5 5 5 5 0int-In-Time Count NJ-500 Atla	3 6 16 586 r Change "Pre & Pe antic City & Count Sheltered Homeless 1		-50.0% 50.0% 220.0%	0 4 4 198		C	#DIV/01
8         9         9         1         5         500         6         2         500         900         9         9         900         9         9         900         90	American Indian or Alaska Native	6 8 115 760	3 35 826	8 – 3		6 4 562 562 20int-In-Time Count NJ-500 Atla	3 6 16 586 586 t Change "Pre & P( antic City & Count Sheltered Homeless	-3 2 11 24 Dast" COVID-19	-50.0% 50.0% 220.0%	0 4 4 0		>	
8         9         1         12%         5         6         1         2         60%         4         4           7/0         80         1         1         1         1         1         2         50%         4         9           7/0         80         1         1         1         1         1         2         50%         4         9           1		8 15 760	9 35 826	1 20 66		4 5 562 Point-In-Time Count NJ-500 Atla	6 16 586 t Change "Pre & P( antic City & Count Sheltered Homeless	2 11 24 bst" COVID-19	50.0% 220.0%	4 10 198	0	0	#DIV/0;
15         33         5         133,6         133,6         133,6         133,6         133,6         11         2006         10           74         Filtered Uncompared Youl         M-500 Admite City & Conty Cat.         Mate of Landske Pared Wat         Mate of Landske Pared Ke         Mate of Landske         Mate of Land	Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander, 2021	760	35 826	20 66		5 562 Point-In-Time Count NJ-500 Atla	16 586 From 2000 Change "Pre & Pr antic City & Count Sheltered Homeless 1	11 24 bast" COVID-19	220.0%	10	3	÷	-25.0%
76         82         6         92         6         32         94         94           1 </td <td>Multiple Races</td> <td>760</td> <td>826</td> <td>66</td> <td></td> <td>562 ?oint-In-Time Count NJ-500 Atla</td> <td>586 t Change "Pre &amp; Pc antic City &amp; Count Sheltered Homeless I</td> <td>24 ost" COVID-19</td> <td></td> <td>198</td> <td>19</td> <td>6</td> <td>90.0%</td>	Multiple Races	760	826	66		562 ?oint-In-Time Count NJ-500 Atla	586 t Change "Pre & Pc antic City & Count Sheltered Homeless I	24 ost" COVID-19		198	19	6	90.0%
Figure Count Change Pret Fort' CND-19 N:400 Attantic City & County Cit.           Attant Anti-Anti-Anti-Antic Change Pret Pret Fort' CND-19 N:400 Attant Cit.           201         201         301         0.000         301         0.000         301           202         203         300         0         201         0.000         301         0.000         301           203         203         203         203         203         203         203         203         203           203         203         203         203         203         203         203         203         203         203           203         203         203         203         203         203         203         203         203         203           203         203         203         203         203         203         203         203         203         203           203         203         203         203         203         203         203         203         203           203         203         203         203         203         203         203         203         203         203         203         203         203         203         20					F	Point-In-Time Count NJ-500 Atla	i Change "Pre & Pc antic City & Count Sheltered Homeless 1	ost" COVID-19			240		
Point-In-Time Count Change "Pec & Poet" COVID-19           Joint 1000           Joint 10000           Joint 10000           Joint 10000           Joint 100000           Joint 100000           Joint 100000           Joint 1000000           Joint 1000000           Joint 1000000000000000000000000000000000000					Ŧ	<sup>2</sup> oint-In-Time Count NJ-500 Atla	t Change "Pre & Po antic City & Count Sheltered Homeless I	'ost" COVID-19			Data Source: HU.	ID Exchange - PIT and	HIC Data Since 200
NI-Ston Attantic City & County Coc.           Solution framework frames framing Yout           2010         2011         Change         Solute (Hambes Framing Yout)           201         201         7         201         100%         1 <td< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>NJ-500 Atla</td><td>untic City &amp; Count</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></td<>						NJ-500 Atla	untic City & Count						
Shiftened Unmompanied Youth         Shiftened Unmompanied Youth           2010         2021         Canage         2021         Canage         5         200         2021         Canage         5         2010         5         2010         2							Sheltered Homeless I	ty CoC					
100 $201$ $000$ $10$ $100$ $100$ $100$ $100$ $2$ $3$ $3$ $300$ $0$ $1$ $1$ $000$ $3$ $10$ $3$ $3$ $800$ $0$ $1$ $1$ $000$ $3$ $10$ $10$ $10$ $100$ $10$ $100$ $100$ $100$ $10$ $10$ $10$ $10$ $10$ $10$ $100$ $100$ $100$ $10$ $11$ $10$ $100$ $10$ $100$ $100$ $100$ $100$ $100$ $10$ $11$ $100$ <			-	mnanied Youth		0		Parenting Youth			Sheltered Home	eless Veterans	
		2019		Change			2021	Change		2019	2021	Change	
	Under 18	6	5	"	150.0%	0	-	-	100.0%				
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Age 18 to 24	- £	, £		0.0%	. 9	- =	-	10.0%				
(6)         (7)         (6)         (6)         (2)         (6)         (1)         (2)         (1)         (1)           (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)           (2)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)           (2)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)           (2)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)           (2)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)           (2)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)           (2)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)           (2)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)           (2)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1)           (2)         (1)         (1)         (1)         (1) </td <td>Under 25</td> <td>34</td> <td>37</td> <td></td> <td>8.8%</td> <td>10</td> <td>12</td> <td>2</td> <td>20.0%</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	Under 25	34	37		8.8%	10	12	2	20.0%				
		89	74	9		20	24	4					
	Female	14	37	23	164.3%	10	12	2	20.0%	4	6	Ţ	-25.0%
	Male	20	21	-	5.0%	0	0	0		110	102	sę	-7.3%
	Transpender	0	15	15		0	0	0		0	0	0	
44 $40$ $40$ $10$ <t< td=""><td>Gender Non-Conforming</td><td>0</td><td>-</td><td>-</td><td></td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td></td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td></td></t<>	Gender Non-Conforming	0	-	-		0	0	0		0	0	0	
	3	34	74	40		10	12	2		114	105	6-	
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Non-Hispanic/Non-Latino	29	0	-29	-100.0%	9	10	4	66.7%	108	98	-10	-9.3%
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Hispanic/Latino	5	12	7	1 40.0%	4	2	5	-50.0%	9	7	1	16.7%
		34	12	-22		10	12	2		114	105	6-	
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	White	6	15	9	66.7%	4	6	5	125.0%	51	46	ċ	-9.8%
	Black or African American	23	17	ę	-26.1%	5	ę	-2	-40.0%	63	58	ċ	-7.9%
	Asian	0	0	0		0	0	0		0	0	0	
	American Indian or Alaska Native	2	0	-2	-100.0%	0	0	0		0	0	0	
	Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander, 2021	0	60	60		0	0	0		0	-	1	
34 $37$ $3$ $10$ $12$ $2$ $11$ Sheltered Chonically Hameless         Sheltered Chonically Hameless         1           Sheltered Chonically Hameless         Sheltered Chonically Hameless         1           2019         2019         2019         2019           2019         2019         2019         2019           Sheltered Homeless Children of Pacening Youth         Sheltered Total Homeless Family Familess Family F	Multiple Races	0	2	6		_	0	7	-100.0%	0	0	0	
Shellered Chronically Homeles         Sheltered Chronically Homeles         Solution         Sheltered Chronically Homeles         Solution         Solution </td <td></td> <td>34</td> <td>37</td> <td>3</td> <td></td> <td>10</td> <td>12</td> <td>2</td> <td></td> <td>114</td> <td>105</td> <td>6-</td> <td></td>		34	37	3		10	12	2		114	105	6-	
2021         Change         %         2019         2021         Change         %         2019           167         58         53.2%         103         135         32         31.1%         6           Sheltered Homeless Children of Parenting Youth         Sheltered Total Homeless Family Homelenolds         31.1%         6           2021         Change         %         2019         2021         Change         %         6           2021         Change         %         2019         2021         Change         %         11.1%         6           15         -3         -16.7%         66         78         12         18.2%         7				ally Homeless		Shelt	Itered Chronically Ho	omeless Individuals	5	Shelter	red Total Chronically F	Homeless People in F	amilies
167         38         53.2%         103         135         32         31.1%         6         32           Sheltered Homeless Children of Parenting Youth         38         53         32         31.1%         6         32           Sheltered Homeless Children of Parenting Youth         38         32         31.1%         6         32           2021         Compre         %         2019         2021         Compre         %           15         -3         -16.7%         66         70         12         18.2%		2010		Chanoe			1000	Chan oe			1202	Chamae	
Sheltered Honeless Children of Parenting Youth         Sheltered Total Homeless Family Households           2021         Change         %         2019         2021         %           15         -3         -16.7%         66         78         12         18.2%		109	167	58	53.2%	103	135	32	31.1%	9	33	26	433.3%
Ome.         Operation of a memory of a second			Itered Homeless Child	ren of Parenting Vout			ered Total Homelese	s Eamily Household					
azz.         tunge         n         azz.         tunge           15         -3         -16.7%         66         78         12				Change of the			3001						
12		6102	1202	Cuunge	02	2019	1707	Chunge	/0				
		18	0	?	-10./%	00	6/	12	18.2%				

Point-In-Time Count Change "Pre & Post" COVID-19 NJ-500 Atlantic City & County CoC

HOME ARP ALLOCATION PLAN \_ 2

	NJ-503 Canden City & C	County/Gloucester, Cape May,	Cumberland Countie	s COC
	Emergency Shelter (ES)	Transitional Housing (TH)	Safe Haven (SH)	Total
Under 18	6	3	0	9
Age 18 to 24	19	14	0	33
Over 24	448	96	0	544
	473	113	0	586
Female	193	13	0	206
Male	278	100	0	378
Transgender	2	0	0	2
Gender Non-Conforming	0	0	0	0
	473	113	0	586
Non-Hispanic/Non-Latino	403	104	0	507
Hispanic/Latino	70	9	0	79
	473	113	0	586
White	250	42	0	292
Black or African American	203	65	0	268
Asian	1	0	0	1
American Indian or Alaska Native	3	0	0	3
Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander, 2021	2	4	0	6
Multiple Races	14	2	0	16
	473	113	0	586
-		Data Commenturi D	1 DIT I UIC D	C: 2007

Sheltered Homeless Individuals Point-In-Time Count for 2021 NJ-503 Camden City & County/Gloucester, Cape May, Cumberland Counties CoC

	NJ 505 Caniden City & C	county/Gloucester, Cape May,	Cumbertana Counties	000
	Emergency Shelter (ES)	Transitional Housing (TH)	Safe Haven (SH)	Total
Under 18	148	12	0	160
Age 18 to 24	31	15	0	46
Over 24	520	100	0	620
	699	127	0	826
Female	329	26	0	355
Male	367	101	0	468
Transgender	3	0	0	3
Gender Non-Conforming	0	0	0	0
	699	127	0	826
Non-Hispanic/Non-Latino	564	109	0	673
Hispanic/Latino	135	18	0	153
	699	127	0	826
White	374	49	0	423
Black or African American	283	72	0	355
Asian	1	0	0	1
American Indian or Alaska Native	3	0	0	3
Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander, 2021	5	4	0	9
Multiple Races	33	2	0	35
	699	127	0	826

Sheltered Homeless Point-In-Time Count for 2021 NJ-503 Camden City & County/Gloucester, Cape May, Cumberland Counties CoC

	NJ-303 Califiden City &	County/Gloucester, Cape May,	Cumbertand Countie	s COC
	Emergency Shelter (ES)	Transitional Housing (TH)	Safe Haven (SH)	Total
Under 18	142	9	0	151
Age 18 to 24	12	1	0	13
Over 24	72	4	0	76
	226	14	0	240
Female	136	13	0	149
Male	89	1	0	90
Transgender	1	0	0	1
Gender Non-Conforming	0	0	0	0
	226	14	0	240
Non-Hispanic/Non-Latino	161	5	0	166
Hispanic/Latino	65	9	0	74
	226	14	0	240
White	124	7	0	131
Black or African American	80	7	0	87
Asian	0	0	0	0
American Indian or Alaska Native	0	0	0	0
Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander, 2021	3	0	0	3
Multiple Races	19	0	0	19
	226	14	0	240

Sheltered Homeless People In Families Point-In-Time Count for 2021 NJ-503 Camden City & County/Gloucester, Cape May, Cumberland Counties CoC

	NJ-503 Camden City &	County/Gloucester, Cape May,	Cumberland Counties	s CoC
	Emergency Shelter (ES)	Transitional Housing (TH)	Safe Haven (SH)	Total
Female	2	1	0	3
Male	15	87	0	102
Transgender	0	0	0	0
Gender Non-Conforming	0	0	0	0
	17	88	0	105
Non-Hispanic/Non-Latino	14	84	0	98
Hispanic/Latino	3	4	0	7
	17	88	0	105
White	9	37	0	46
Black or African American	8	50	0	58
Asian	0	0	0	0
American Indian or Alaska Native	0	0	0	0
Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander, 2021	0	1	0	1
Multiple Races	0	0	0	0
	17	88	0	105
		Data Courses HUD Fre	hange PIT and HIC Date	C:

Sheltered Homeless Veterans Point-In-Time Count for 2021 NI-503 Camden City & County/Gloucester, Cane May, Cumberland Counties CoC

	NJ-305 Califden City &	County/Gloucester, Cape May,	Cumbertand Counties	scoc
	Emergency Shelter (ES)	Transitional Housing (TH)	Safe Haven (SH)	Total
Under 18	2	3	0	5
Age 18 to 24	18	14	0	32
Under 25	20	17	0	37
Female	12	9	0	21
Male	7	8	0	15
Transgender	1	0	0	1
Gender Non-Conforming	0	0	0	0
	20	17	0	37
Non-Hispanic/Non-Latino	13	12	0	25
Hispanic/Latino	7	5	0	12
	20	17	0	37
White	13	2	0	15
Black or African American	6	11	0	17
Asian	0	0	0	0
American Indian or Alaska Native	0	0	0	0
Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander, 2021	0	3	0	3
Multiple Races	1	1	0	2
	20	17	0	37

Sheltered Homeless Unnacompanied Youth Point-In-Time Count for 2021 NJ-503 Camden City & County/Gloucester, Cape May, Cumberland Counties CoC

	113-303 Caniden City & C	County/Gloucester, Cape May,		
	Emergency Shelter (ES)	Transitional Housing (TH)	Safe Haven (SH)	Total
Under 18	1	0	0	1
Age 18 to 24	10	1	0	11
Under 25	11	1	0	12
Female	11	1	0	12
Male	0	0	0	0
Transgender	0	0	0	0
Gender Non-Conforming	0	0	0	0
	11	1	0	12
Non-Hispanic/Non-Latino	9	1	0	10
Hispanic/Latino	2	0	0	2
	11	1	0	12
White	9	0	0	9
Black or African American	2	1	0	3
Asian	0	0	0	0
American Indian or Alaska Native	0	0	0	0
Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander, 2021	0	0	0	0
Multiple Races	0	0	0	0
	11	1	0	12
-		Data Source: HUD Exc	hange - PIT and HIC Date	i Since 2007

Sheltered Homeless Parenting Youth Point-In-Time Count for 2021 NJ-503 Camden City & County/Gloucester, Cape May, Cumberland Counties CoC

HOME ARP ALLOCATION PLAN\_8

#### Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy Income Distribution 2015-2019

	Owner	Renter	Total
Household Income <= 30% HAMFI	10,450	21,715	32,165
Household Income >30% to <=50% HAMFI	11,300	11,480	22,780
Household Income >50% to <=80% HAMFI	18,910	11,850	30,760
Household Income >80% to <=100% HAMFI	13,480	5,745	19,225
Household Income >100% HAMFI	71,085	11,365	82,450
Total	125,230	62,155	187,385

Source: HUD Comprehensive Housing Affordibility Strategy Data (CHAS) for 2015-2019 \* HUD Area Median Family Income (HAMFI)

#### Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy Housing Problems 2015-2019

		0	
	Owner	Renter	Total
Household has at least 1 of 4 Housing Problems	36,920	32,745	69,665
Household has none of 4 Housing Problems OR cost burden not available no other problems	88,305	29,410	117,715
Total	125,230	62,155	187,385
Household has at least 1 of 4 Severe Housing Problems	16,055	19,540	35,595
Household has none of 4 Severe Housing Problems OR cost burden not available no other problems	109,170	42,615	151,785
Total	125,230	62,155	187,385

\* The four severe housing problems are: incomplete kitchen facilities, incomplete plumbing facilities, more than 1.5 persons per room, and cost burden greater than 50%. Source: HUD Comprehensive Housing Affordibility Strategy Data (CHAS) for 2015-2019

#### Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy Housing Cost Burden 2015-2019

	1100	sing cost Burden 2015 2017	
	Owner	Renter	Total
Cost Burden <= 30%	88,905	29,565	118,470
Cost Burden >30% to <=50%	21,175	13,945	35,120
Cost Burden >50%	14,410	16,865	31,275
Cost Burden not available	735	1,780	2,515
Total	125.230	62,155	187.385

\* Cost burden is the ratio of housing costs to household income. For renters, housing cost is gross rent (contract rent plus utilities).

For owners, housing cost is "select monthly owner costs", which includes mortgage payment, utilities, association fees, insurance, and real estate taxes.

Source: HUD Comprehensive Housing Affordibility Strategy Data (CHAS) for 2015-2019

## APPENDIX B

The following pages of Appendix B contains documentation of the public participation process, including:

- 1. Public notice
- 2. Public Hearing PowerPoint Presentation



OMB Number: 4040-0004 Expiration Date: 12/31/2022

Application for F	ederal Assista	nce SF-424		
* 1. Type of Submission Preapplication Application Changed/Corre	on: cted Application	New [	* If Revision, select appropriate letter(s):  * Other (Specify):	
* 3. Date Received: 03/30/2023		4. Applicant Identifier:		
5a. Federal Entity Ide	ntifier:		5b. Federal Award Identifier:	
State Use Only:				
6. Date Received by s	State:	7. State Application	n Identifier:	
8. APPLICANT INFO	RMATION:			
* a. Legal Name: Co	ounty of Camde	n		
* b. Employer/Taxpay	er Identification Nur	mber (EIN/TIN):	* c. UEI:	
21-6000504			DSF2T2Y9A483	
d. Address:				-
* Street1: Street2: * City:	520 Market St Camden	reet		
County/Parish:				٦
* State: Province:	NJ: New Jerse	: Y		_
* Country:	USA: UNITED S	TATES		٦
* Zip / Postal Code:	08102-1300			
e. Organizational U	nit:	·····		
Department Name:			Division Name:	
Community Deve	lopment			
f. Name and contac	t information of p	erson to be contacted on m	matters involving this application:	<u>a</u>
	nco	First Name	me: Anthony	
01.	of Community D			
		everopment		
Organizational Affiliat	lion:			
* Telephone Number	856-225-5559	9	Fax Number:	
* Email: anthony.	bianco@camden	county.com		

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424
* 9. Type of Applicant 1: Select Applicant Type:
B: County Government
Type of Applicant 2: Select Applicant Type:
Type of Applicant 3: Select Applicant Type:
* Other (specify):
* 10. Name of Federal Agency:
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
11. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number:
CFDA Title:
* 12. Funding Opportunity Number:
* Title:
14.239: HOME Investment Partnerships Program.
13. Competition Identification Number:
Title:
14. Areas Affected by Project (Cities, Counties, States, etc.):
Add Attachment         Delete Attachment         View Attachment
* 15. Descriptive Title of Applicant's Project:
Camden County HOME ARP program - specific activities listed in the FY 2021 plan
Attack supporting doguments as specified in agency instructions
Attach supporting documents as specified in agency instructions.         Add Attachments       Delete Attachments         View Attachments

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424	<u> </u>			
16. Congressional Districts Of:				
* a. Applicant 1 * b. Program/Project 1				
Attach an additional list of Program/Project Congressional Districts if needed.				
Add Attachment Delete Attachment View Attachment				
17. Proposed Project:				
* a. Start Date: 07/01/2021 * b. End Date: 06/30/2022				
18. Estimated Funding (\$):				
*a. Federal 4,108,852.00				
* b. Applicant				
* c. State				
* d. Local				
* e. Other				
* f. Program Income				
*g. TOTAL 4,108,852.00				
* 19. Is Application Subject to Review By State Under Executive Order 12372 Process?				
a. This application was made available to the State under the Executive Order 12372 Process for review on				
b. Program is subject to E.O. 12372 but has not been selected by the State for review.				
C. Program is not covered by E.O. 12372.				
* 20. Is the Applicant Delinquent On Any Federal Debt? (If "Yes," provide explanation in attachment.)				
Yes X No				
If "Yes", provide explanation and attach				
Add Attachment         Delete Attachment         View Attachment				
21. *By signing this application, I certify (1) to the statements contained in the list of certifications** and (2) that the statements herein are true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. I also provide the required assurances** and agree to comply with any resulting terms if I accept an award. I am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims may subject me to criminal, civil, or administrative penalties. (U.S. Code, Title 18, Section 1001)				
x + I AGREE				
** The list of certifications and assurances, or an internet site where you may obtain this list, is contained in the announcement or agency				
specific instructions.				
Authorized Representative:				
Prefix: Mr. * First Name: Ross				
Middle Name:				
* Last Name: Angilella				
Suffix:				
* Title: Administrator				
* Telephone Number: 856-225-5353 Fax Number:				
* Email: rossa@camdencounty.com				
* Signature of Authorized Representative: * Date Signed: 3/27/2	3			

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0042), Washington, DC 20503.

# PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR COMPLETED FORM TO THE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET. SEND IT TO THE ADDRESS PROVIDED BY THE SPONSORING AGENCY.

NOTE: Certain of these assurances may not be applicable to your project or program. If you have questions, please contact the Awarding Agency. Further, certain Federal assistance awarding agencies may require applicants to certify to additional assurances. If such is the case, you will be notified.

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant:, I certify that the applicant:

- Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance, and the institutional, managerial and financial capability (including funds sufficient to pay the non-Federal share of project costs) to ensure proper planning, management and completion of project described in this application.
- 2. Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller General of the United States and, if appropriate, the State, the right to examine all records, books, papers, or documents related to the assistance; and will establish a proper accounting system in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards or agency directives.
- 3. Will not dispose of, modify the use of, or change the terms of the real property title or other interest in the site and facilities without permission and instructions from the awarding agency. Will record the Federal awarding agency directives and will include a covenant in the title of real property acquired in whole or in part with Federal assistance funds to assure non-discrimination during the useful life of the project.
- 4. Will comply with the requirements of the assistance awarding agency with regard to the drafting, review and approval of construction plans and specifications.
- 5. Will provide and maintain competent and adequate engineering supervision at the construction site to ensure that the complete work conforms with the approved plans and specifications and will furnish progressive reports and such other information as may be required by the assistance awarding agency or State.
- 6. Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable time frame after receipt of approval of the awarding agency.
- 7. Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or presents the appearance of personal or organizational conflict of interest, or personal gain.

- Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. §§4728-4763) relating to prescribed standards of merit systems for programs funded under one of the 19 statutes or regulations specified in Appendix A of OPM's Standards for a Merit System of Personnel Administration (5 C.F.R. 900, Subpart F).
- Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. §§4801 et seq.) which prohibits the use of lead-based paint in construction or rehabilitation of residence structures.
- 10. Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination. These include but are not limited to: (a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§1681 1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; (c) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29) U.S.C. §794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps; (d) the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; (f) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (g) §§523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§290 dd-3 and 290 ee 3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse patient records; (h) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§3601 et seq.), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, rental or financing of housing; (i) any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statue(s) under which application for Federal assistance is being made; and (j) the requirements of any other nondiscrimination statue(s) which may apply to the application.

Authorized for Local Reproduction

Standard Form 424D (Rev. 7-97) Prescribed by OMB Circular A-102

- 11. Will comply, or has already complied, with the requirements of Titles II and III of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide for fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced or whose property is acquired as a result of Federal and federally-assisted programs. These requirements apply to all interests in real property acquired for project purposes regardless of Federal participation in purchases.
- Will comply with the provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§1501-1508 and 7324-7328) which limit the political activities of employees whose principal employment activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds.
- Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. §276c and 18 U.S.C. §874), and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §§327-333) regarding labor standards for federally-assisted construction subagreements.
- 14. Will comply with flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which requires recipients in a special flood hazard area to participate in the program and to purchase flood insurance if the total cost of insurable construction and acquisition is \$10,000 or more.
- 15. Will comply with environmental standards which may be prescribed pursuant to the following: (a) institution of environmental quality control measures under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190) and Executive Order (EO) 11514; (b) notification of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c) protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation of flood hazards in floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; (e) assurance of project consistency with the approved State management program developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. §§1451 et seq.); (f) conformity of

Federal actions to State (Clean Air) implementation Plans under Section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.); (g) protection of underground sources of drinking water under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended (P.L. 93-523); and, (h) protection of endangered species under the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-205).

- Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. §§1271 et seq.) related to protecting components or potential components of the national wild and scenic rivers system.
- Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. §470), EO 11593 (identification and protection of historic properties), and the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C. §§469a-1 et seq).
- Will cause to be performed the required financial and compliance audits in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circular No. A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations."
- Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other Federal laws, executive orders, regulations, and policies governing this program.
- 20. Will comply with the requirements of Section 106(g) of the Trafficking Victims Protection Act (TVPA) of 2000, as amended (22 U.S.C. 7104) which prohibits grant award recipients or a sub-recipient from (1) Engaging in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time that the award is in effect (2) Procuring a commercial sex act during the period of time that the award is in effect or (3) Using forced labor in the performance of the award or subawards under the award.

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED CERTIFYING OFFICIAL	TITLE
[ 1 2 ]	Administrator
$P_{M}$	
APPLICANT ORGANIZATION	DATE SUBMITTED
County of Camden	3/29/23

SF-424D (Rev. 7-97) Back

#### ASSURANCES - NON-CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0040), Washington, DC 20503.

# PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR COMPLETED FORM TO THE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET. SEND IT TO THE ADDRESS PROVIDED BY THE SPONSORING AGENCY.

NOTE: Certain of these assurances may not be applicable to your project or program. If you have questions, please contact the awarding agency. Further, certain Federal awarding agencies may require applicants to certify to additional assurances. If such is the case, you will be notified.

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I certify that the applicant:

- Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance and the institutional, managerial and financial capability (including funds sufficient to pay the non-Federal share of project cost) to ensure proper planning, management and completion of the project described in this application.
- 2. Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller General of the United States and, if appropriate, the State, through any authorized representative, access to and the right to examine all records, books, papers, or documents related to the award; and will establish a proper accounting system in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards or agency directives.
- Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or presents the appearance of personal or organizational conflict of interest, or personal gain.
- Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable time frame after receipt of approval of the awarding agency.
- Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. §§4728-4763) relating to prescribed standards for merit systems for programs funded under one of the 19 statutes or regulations specified in Appendix A of OPM's Standards for a Merit System of Personnel Administration (5 C.F.R. 900, Subpart F).
- Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination. These include but are not limited to:

   (a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352)
   which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education
   Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C.§§1681-1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; (c) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation

Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. §794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps; (d) the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U. S.C. §§6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age: (e) the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; (f) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (g) §§523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§290 dd-3 and 290 ee- 3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse patient records; (h) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§3601 et seq.), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, rental or financing of housing; (i) any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) under which application for Federal assistance is being made; and, (j) the requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to the application.

- 7. Will comply, or has already complied, with the requirements of Titles II and III of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide for fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced or whose property is acquired as a result of Federal or federally-assisted programs. These requirements apply to all interests in real property acquired for project purposes regardless of Federal participation in purchases.
- Will comply, as applicable, with provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§1501-1508 and 7324-7328) which limit the political activities of employees whose principal employment activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds.

**Previous Edition Usable** 

Authorized for Local Reproduction

Standard Form 424B (Rev. 7-97) Prescribed by OMB Circular A-102

- Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. §276c and 18 U.S.C. §874), and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §§327-333), regarding labor standards for federally-assisted construction subagreements.
- 10. Will comply, if applicable, with flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which requires recipients in a special flood hazard area to participate in the program and to purchase flood insurance if the total cost of insurable construction and acquisition is \$10,000 or more.
- 11. Will comply with environmental standards which may be prescribed pursuant to the following: (a) institution of environmental quality control measures under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190) and Executive Order (EO) 11514; (b) notification of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c) protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation of flood hazards in floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; (e) assurance of project consistency with the approved State management program developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. §§1451 et seq.); (f) conformity of Federal actions to State (Clean Air) Implementation Plans under Section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.); (g) protection of underground sources of drinking water under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended (P.L. 93-523); and, (h) protection of endangered species under the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-205).
- Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. §§1271 et seq.) related to protecting components or potential components of the national wild and scenic rivers system.

- Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. §470), EO 11593 (identification and protection of historic properties), and the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C. §§469a-1 et seq.).
- 14. Will comply with P.L. 93-348 regarding the protection of human subjects involved in research, development, and related activities supported by this award of assistance.
- 15. Will comply with the Laboratory Animal Welfare Act of 1966 (P.L. 89-544, as amended, 7 U.S.C. §§2131 et seq.) pertaining to the care, handling, and treatment of warm blooded animals held for research, teaching, or other activities supported by this award of assistance.
- 16. Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. §§4801 et seq.) which prohibits the use of lead-based paint in construction or rehabilitation of residence structures.
- 17. Will cause to be performed the required financial and compliance audits in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circular No. A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations."
- Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other Federal laws, executive orders, regulations, and policies governing this program.
- 19. Will comply with the requirements of Section 106(g) of the Trafficking Victims Protection Act (TVPA) of 2000, as amended (22 U.S.C. 7104) which prohibits grant award recipients or a sub-recipient from (1) Engaging in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time that the award is in effect (2) Procuring a commercial sex act during the period of time that the award is in effect or (3) Using forced labor in the performance of the award or subawards under the award,

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED CERTIFYING OFFICIAL	TITLE Administrator
APPLICANT ORGANIZATION	DATE SUBMITTED
County of Camden	3/29/23

Standard Form 424B (Rev. 7-97) Back

### HOME-ARP CERTIFICATIONS

In accordance with the applicable statutes and the regulations governing the consolidated plan regulations, the participating jurisdiction certifies that:

Affirmatively Further Fair Housing -- The jurisdiction will affirmatively further fair housing pursuant to 24 CFR 5.151 and 5.152.

**Uniform Relocation Act and Anti-displacement and Relocation Plan** --It will comply with the acquisition and relocation requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended, (42 U.S.C. 4601-4655) and implementing regulations at 49 CFR Part 24. It will comply with the acquisition and relocation requirements contained in the HOME-ARP Notice, including the revised one-for-one replacement requirements. It has in effect and is following a residential anti-displacement and relocation assistance plan required under 24 CFR Part 42, which incorporates the requirements of the HOME-ARP Notice. It will follow its residential anti-displacement and relocation assistance plan in connection with any activity assisted with funding under the HOME-ARP program.

### Anti-Lobbying -- To the best of the jurisdiction's knowledge and belief:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of it, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement;

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, it will complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions; and

3. It will require that the language of paragraph 1 and 2 of this anti-lobbying certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

Authority of Jurisdiction -- The consolidated plan is authorized under State and local law (as applicable) and the jurisdiction possesses the legal authority to carry out the programs for which it is seeking funding, in accordance with applicable HUD regulations and program requirements.

Section 3 -- It will comply with section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 (12 U.S.C. 1701u) and implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 75.

**HOME-ARP Certification** --It will use HOME-ARP funds consistent with Section 3205 of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (P.L. 117-2) and the CPD Notice: *Requirements for the Use of Funds in the HOME-American Rescue Plan Program*, as may be amended by HUD, for eligible activities and costs, including the HOME-ARP Notice requirements that activities are consistent with its accepted HOME-ARP allocation plan and that HOME-ARP funds will not be used for prohibited activities or costs, as described in the HOME-ARP Notice.

Šignature of Authorized Official

3/29/23

Date

Title ROSS G. ANGILELLA COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR